
 

       
In-Person and Via Live Stream: Click Here   

Dial-In Live Stream: 312-626-6799; Webinar ID 889 1236 4722 Passcode: 420115 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE JANUARY 26, 2026 REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: - emailed public comment can be sent to the deputy village clerk at 

mroach@forestpark.net prior to 6:30 p.m. the day of the meeting 
COMMUNICATIONS:   

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  

1. Fire Department Annual Report - 2025 
2. Fire Department – January 2026 
3. Community Center – January 2026 

 
BILLS BY RESOLUTION 
  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 

1. Presentation: Lauterbach and Amen, LLC 
2. Presentation: Board of Health  
3. Ordinance authorizing a loan from Forest Park National Bank 
4. Ordinance waiving the bidding process and authorizing the purchase of one Pierce Enforcer Pierce 

Ultimate Configuration (PUC) 100’ Ascendant Tower Ladder Truck by the Village 
5. Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the IGA between the Village and the County of Cook, 

acting through its Bureau of Asset Management, for the design, construction, installation, operation 
and maintenance of two (2) electric vehicle charging stations 

6. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #11 for the AMI Water Meters Replacement 
Project to Veregy Central, LLC 

7. Approval: Motion to Direct the Board of Fire and Police to offer employment to the next two (2) 
eligible Probationary Firefighters 

8. Approval: Application for Use of Public Way – Food Aid 2026: Robert’s Westside 
9. Approval: Community Center Senior Trip Agreement – The Barrel Run 

 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2) – COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATING 
MATTERS  
 

 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, February 9, 2026   
Lower Level of Village Hall 

7:00 PM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88912364722?pwd=YGTYCvC54xROe3uJnPw4saaWNua5yP.1
mailto:mroach@forestpark.net


Village of Forest Park 
Village Council Meeting January 26, 2026 

Meeting minutes 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:02 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Deputy Clerk Roach conducted roll call. Present were: Commissioner Maxham, 
Commissioner Nero, Commissioner Melin-Rogovin, Commissioner Voogd, and Mayor 
Hoskins. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE JANUARY 12, 2026 REGULAR 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 

Motion to approve the meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Maxham and 
seconded by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin. The motion passed, with one abstention by 
Commissioner Nero, who was absent from the January 12 meeting. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no public comments. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

No formal communications were presented. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

1. Police Department – November-December 2025 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin commended the Police Department's annual report, noting the 
impressive depth and breadth of their enforcement activities. She encouraged residents to 
review the report to better understand the full scope of services provided by the Police 
Department, highlighting their professionalism and outstanding service to the community. 

BILLS BY RESOLUTION 

Deputy Clerk Roach read the bills by resolution, detailing expenditures across various 
departments totaling $1,965,679.49. 

Motion to adopt the resolution of bills was made by Commissioner Maxham and seconded 
by Commissioner Nero. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded as 
Resolution 4-26. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Ordinance amending Section 8-1-1, entitled "Building Codes Adoption," of the 
Municipal Code 
Commissioner Voogd raised concerns regarding specific sections recommended for removal 
from the code, particularly those related to sprinkler systems and carbon monoxide detector 
requirements. Commissioner Voogd questioned why these locally added sections were being 
struck from the code. 

Director Glinke explained that the carbon monoxide requirements are already mandated by 
Illinois State law, making the local provision redundant. Regarding sprinkler retrofit 



requirements, he stated that the previously adopted language was problematic because it was 
based on cyclical market values that were arbitrary and difficult to apply. He explained that 
retrofitting single-family homes with sprinklers could cost homeowners approximately 
$40,000, creating an economic burden. Glinke emphasized that in single-family residences, 
interconnected smoke detectors for early notification are the focus for life safety rather than 
sprinklers, which primarily protect property. 

Village Attorney Nick Peppers recommended either amending the motion or approving it as 
presented with the understanding that the council could revisit specific provisions later. 

Motion to amend the ordinance to retain the local sprinkler provisions was made by 
Commissioner Voogd and seconded by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin. The motion to 
amend failed 2-3 with Commissioner Maxham, Commissioner Nero, and Mayor Hoskins 
voting no. 

The main motion to approve the ordinance amending Section 8-1-1 as presented was made 
by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded by Commissioner Nero. The motion 
passed unanimously. This was recorded as Ordinance 3-26. 

Mayor Hoskins emphasized the importance of maintaining decorum during meetings, 
reminding commissioners to allow one another to finish speaking when recognized and noting 
that commissioners are not required to comment on every subject. During the building codes 
discussion, the Mayor paused the deliberations to reiterate these expectations. 

NEW BUSINESS 

2. Proclamation Honoring the Retirement of Karen Dylewski, Director of the Howard 
Mohr Community Center 
Village Administrator Entler read a proclamation honoring Karen Dylewski's 25 years of 
distinguished service to the Village of Forest Park, including nearly 20 years as Director of the 
Howard Mohr Community Center. The proclamation recognized her leadership in providing 
essential services to seniors, strengthening the lives of children and families, operating critical 
safety net programs, and fostering civic engagement. 

Commissioner Maxham praised Dylewski's direct approach to solving problems without 
getting tied up in bureaucracy or politics, noting her selflessness and dedication to helping 
people in difficult situations without seeking recognition. 

Commissioner Nero described Dylewski as a model of humility and wished her health and 
happiness in retirement. 

Commissioner Melin-Rogovin highlighted Dylewski as the model of true community service, 
noting her creative, loving, and positive energy in finding ways to help people that improved 
their lives substantially. She acknowledged how Dylewski helped generations of families in 
the community and set an example for community center employees. 

Commissioner Voogd described Dylewski as a "force" and "ball of light and energy" who was 
proud of her community center "kids" and supportive of colleagues and everyone in the 
community, touching many lives in Forest Park and beyond. 

Mayor Hoskins acknowledged Dylewski's hard work, long hours, and personal connection to 
his family, having watched all four of his children at the community center and even hiring his 
daughter as a counselor. He congratulated her on her "promotion to full-time grandparent." 

3. Ordinance approving and authorizing the execution of an Advertiser Sales Contract 
with Clear Channel Outdoor, LLC for Public Service Announcements on Digital 
Billboards 



Motion to approve the ordinance was made by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded as 
Ordinance 4-26. 

4. Resolution authorizing the Contract Award for the 2025 Lead Service Replacement 
Project – Stage 3 to Five Star Energy Services, LLC 

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and 
seconded by Commissioner Voogd. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded 
as Resolution 5-26. 

5. Resolution approving Pay Request #3 (Final) for the 2025 Green Alley Improvements 
Project from J. Nardulli Construction Company 

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and 
seconded by Commissioner Voogd. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded 
as Resolution 6-26. 

6. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #10 for the AMI Water Meters 
Replacement Project to Veregy Central, LLC 

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and 
seconded by Commissioner Voogd. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded 
as Resolution 7-26. 

7. Resolution approving Pay Request #1 for the 2025 Sidewalk Improvements Project to 
Robert R. Andreas and Sons, Inc. 

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and 
seconded by Commissioner Voogd. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded 
as Resolution 8-26. 

8. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #2 for the 2025 Lead Service 
Replacement – Stage 2 Project to Five Star Energy Services, Inc. 

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and 
seconded by Commissioner Voogd. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded 
as Resolution 9-26. 

9. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #3 for the 2025 Lead Service 
Replacement – Stage 2 Project to Five Star Energy Services, Inc. 

Motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Melin Rogovin and 
seconded by Commissioner Voogd. The motion passed unanimously. This was recorded 
as Resolution 10-26. 

10. Approval: Request for Participation in the Vehicle Sticker Registration donation 
request for CY2026 – Forest Park Food Pantry 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin expressed strong support for this initiative. 

Motion to approve the request was made by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero. The motion passed unanimously. 

11. Approval: Use of Public Way: Living Word Christian Center, O'Sullivan's Public 
House and Forest Park Arts Alliance 
Commissioner Maxham asked about potential issues with Living Word Christian Center's 
event, referencing problems from the previous year regarding the submission of maps and street 
closures. 



Village Administrator Entler confirmed they had requested the organization to start the process 
earlier this year since the event wouldn't take place until fall, giving them ample time to secure 
necessary permissions if they planned to request closure of Des Plaines Avenue, which would 
require IDOT approval.  

Motion to approve the use of public way was made by Commissioner Voogd and 
seconded by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin. The motion passed unanimously. 

12. Approval: Community Center Senior Trip Agreement- Fireside Theater 

Motion to approve the trip agreement was made by Commissioner Maxham and seconded 
by Commissioner Nero. The motion passed unanimously. 

ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
Village Administrator Entler shared additional thoughts about Karen Dylewski's retirement, 
noting her personal impact on the administrator's life, particularly during the administrator's 
cancer journey. 

The administrator reported on the weekend snowstorm, thanking Public Works for being on 
the streets around the clock and continuing clean-up efforts. 

Administrator Entler provided progress on the water meter replacement project, noting that the 
new system now provides alerts for high water usage. This feature already proved valuable as 
they were able to contact three residents that morning about potential frozen and burst pipes. 
The administrator explained that residents will eventually have access to a customer portal 
where they can set their own alerts. The administrator thanked the council for approving the 
water meter project and reminded residents to take precautions to prevent pipes from freezing 
during cold weather. 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
Commissioner Maxham reported on two significant Fire Department responses: a major fire 
on January 12th and an in-field delivery of a baby. Commissioner Maxham thanked Chief 
Hankus for keeping her updated and expressed appreciation to the department for their hard 
work despite being overworked. 

Commissioner Nero addressed the zoning code update, noting that the comprehensive report 
from December seemed to address many concerns, but there appeared to be lingering issues 
from some commissioners. He stated that no further questions or comments had been submitted 
to the department since then and suggested either submitting specific recommendations with 
supporting rationale or sending the matter back to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a 
joint meeting with public input to move forward with necessary development to generate 
property tax revenue. 

Commissioner Melin-Rogovin responded to Commissioner Nero, suggesting they have a direct 
conversation rather than interpreting her body language. She reported on the Traffic and Safety 
Commission meeting, highlighting concerns about driver safety, particularly regarding 
pedestrians and speed during winter conditions. She announced a public meeting scheduled for 
February 18th at 7 PM at Village Hall where residents could learn about the commission's 
strategic plan and process for addressing street safety concerns. Commissioner Melin-Rogovin 
also mentioned her participation in the District 91 Citizens Advisory Council and the PTO Day 
of Service on MLK Day where 200 volunteers packed 35,000 meals. 

Commissioner Voogd responded to Commissioner Nero, stating that her questions and 
suggestions had been sent months earlier and remained unanswered, emphasizing that the delay 
in zoning code updates was due to lack of response. She thanked Public Works for their efforts 



during the snowstorm and expressed appreciation for everyone working in difficult weather 
conditions, including first responders. 

Mayor Hoskins announced the West Central Municipal Conference legislative breakfast 
scheduled for February 7th, encouraging commissioners to attend this networking opportunity 
with regional government officials. 

The Mayor reported on his meeting with Cook County Board President Tony Preckwinkle, 
where he discussed the high number of emergency calls to the 711 Des Plaines Blue Line 
terminal. As a result, Forest Park was invited to participate in the public safety task force 
focused on transit safety. The Mayor, Village Administrator, Police Chief, and Fire Chief met 
with representatives from the Cook County Sheriff's Office to discuss safety concerns, 
communication systems, and recommendations, including a suggestion for CTA to station an 
ambulance overnight at the terminal to relieve pressure on the Forest Park Fire Department. 

Mayor Hoskins also mentioned attending a presentation by Illinois' Chief Homelessness 
Officer, noting the connection between homelessness and lack of affordable housing, 
particularly in transit-oriented developments. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn at 8:10 pm was made by Commissioner Nero and seconded by 
Commissioner Maxham. The motion passed unanimously. 



Forest Park
Fire Department

2025 
Annual Report



Fire Department Year in Review

The Forest Park Fire Department experienced another record-breaking year in 2025,
responding to 4,742 calls for service—an increase of approximately 250 calls over

the previous year and the highest total in department history. This continued
growth reinforced the need for sustained advocacy for staffing, equipment, and

long-term operational planning.

The department welcomed two new members, FF/PM Causgrove and FF/PM Clift,
who were officially sworn in during the year. Their addition strengthens the

organization, and the department looks forward to the skills, perspective, and
initiative they bring to Forest Park.

Recruitment remained a challenge throughout the year. Despite multiple efforts, the
Village had to administer three separate entry-level firefighter testing processes,

underscoring the competitive labor market and the department's ongoing staffing
pressures.

Training remained a core priority. Members participated in outside classes and
certification programs while continuing regular in-house training and hands-on drills

to maintain readiness for high-risk, low-frequency incidents. Grant funding was
secured to replace aging and obsolete equipment, allowing the department to

modernize critical tools while limiting the financial impact on taxpayers.

Fleet reliability remained a concern. Engine 401 required a full motor replacement
during the year to remain in service, and after 22 years of service, the department

was forced to retire its 2003 ladder truck due to mechanical and structural failures
that rendered it beyond repair. While these issues created gaps in fleet capabilities,

planning for replacements is underway.

The department also began working with an architect to explore future
rehabilitation of the firehouse to better support modern operations and firefighter

health and safety.

Overall, 2025 was defined by increased demand, a clear-eyed assessment of
limitations, and forward-looking planning. The Forest Park Fire Department
continued to adapt and invest in its people and infrastructure to meet the

community’s needs.



0 100 200 300 400 500

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

423

370

375

380

404

437

372

388

402

426

371

394

2025
4,742 Total Calls



20
11
20
12
20
13
20
14
20
15
20
16
20
17
20
18
20
19
20
20
20
21
20
22
20
23
20
24
20
25

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

2953 3014
2940 2974

3121 3152

3440

3848
4010

3729

4147

4351 4343
4491

4742

Number of Incidents per Year



Forest Park FD River Forest FD

North Riverside FD

2010
2011

2012
2013

2014
2015

2016
2017

2018
2019

2020
2021

2022
2023

2024
2025

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

Forest Park Compared to our Single
Firehouse Neighbors



Incident Type

Fire-55 Hazardous Situation-70

Emergency Medical Service Service Call

Good Intent False Alarm

Emergency
Medical Service

2825

Good Intent
963

Service Call
611

False Alarm
218



January

Febru
ary

M
arc

h
April

M
ay

June
July

August

Septe
m

ber

Octo
ber

Novem
ber

Decem
ber

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

53
47

51 48

29

46

35 34

47

36

51

63

Frequent  Locations

Aperian Care 
8200 Roosevelt Rd

174

Riveredge Hospital 
8311 Roosevelt Rd

101

Total CTA incidents for 2025
625 

Incidents per Month 711 Desplaines Ave

Blue Line Terminus
711 DesPlaines Ave

540

Blue Line Harlem Stop
701 Harlem Ave

57

Green Line Terminus
1 S Harlem Ave

28



Dakota Causgrove
June 1st, 2025

Drew Clift
September 1st, 2025

Fire Department 
New Hires











TRAININGTRAINING
 New training officers, Toth and Winkoff, attended
Instructor I. Toth also attended Instructor II. 
 Chief Lindsey Hankus attended the Fire
Department Instructors Conference and the
Illinois Fire Chiefs Conference.
LT Damato, FF/PM Valtman, FF/PM Winkoff, and
FF/PM Galvez completed the Advanced
Technician Firefighter class.
August 2025 Deputy Chief Maylath attended a
drill with the Chicago Fire Department for the
CTA.
Acting Officer Weber attended the Company Fire
Officer course.
Probationary Firefighter Clift completed the
Basic Operations Firefighter academy.
Chief Hankus attended Reunification Training and
Advanced Active Shooter Incident Management
last Winter.
Retired Captain Santelli held a fire engineer class
in Stickney. Winkoff, Piotrowski, and Kempka took
advantage of this valuable training 



MABAS
Division 11

Shelter

Fireground Operations Training at an acquired structure
generously donated by Forest Park Residents

TRAININGTRAINING



Engineer
Training with

the River
Forest Fire

Department



Summer
Block
Parties



Active Shooter
Incident

Management



Pediatric EMS
Training





That time people thought we
were the cast of Chicago Fire







Helping the Yard Foundation  
It Feels Good to do Good





Red Shift

Lt Phil  Damato

Tony Vil lasenor

Humberto Soto

Aaron Hannan

Tim Ryan

Mitch Kempka

Adrian Bala

Kevin Kraus

Drew Clift

Black Shift

Lt Michael Kinder

Ken Hriensaitong

Travis Myers

Brian Valtman

Ryan Winkoff

Matt Bakke

Lou Galvez

Dakota Causgrove

Vacancy

Gold Shift

 Lt BJ Reid

Andrew Weber

Lou Davini

Bil l  Toth

Kyle Piotrowski

Richard Lovett

Bil l  Shanahan

Coll in Thomas

Vacancy

Chief Lindsey Hankus

Deputy Chief Mark Maylath



2026 Goals
The Forest Park Fire Department remains committed to providing reliable, professional

emergency service. Our focus is on strengthening the foundation of our operations so we
can continue meeting the community’s needs for years to come.

Supporting Our Personnel and Training
As call volume continues to grow, we are working to ensure our firefighters and paramedics

have the support, staffing, and resources needed to perform safely and effectively. Our
goal is to improve recruitment, increase staffing, reduce fatigue, and maintain a healthy,

sustainable workforce. We will also continue supporting members who pursue training and
professional development to keep our crews prepared for all hazards.

Maintaining Reliable Emergency Vehicles
Our emergency vehicles are essential to every response. In 2026, we are prioritizing timely
replacement to keep our fleet dependable, safe, and ready to serve. Truck 403 was taken

out of service after it was determined to be beyond economical repair and must be
replaced to maintain reliable operations. Engine 402 is scheduled for replacement in 2027,

as age and wear—including early frame corrosion—are beginning to impact its long-term
reliability. Proactive replacement planning helps control costs while ensuring

uninterrupted emergency service to the community.
Planning for the Future Fire Station

Our fire station has served Forest Park for more than a century. While it continues to
function, it no longer reflects the needs of modern fire and EMS service. Increased demand

for emergency medical services has highlighted the need to accommodate a second
ambulance. Updated bathroom, sleeping, and living areas that properly support all present

and future personnel are also important. In 2026, we will begin discussions to identify
facility solutions that meet current operational needs and support growth.

Strengthening Fire Prevention and Inspections
Fire prevention is one of the most effective ways to protect lives and property. This year, we

will continue working to improve inspection consistency and capacity, supporting safer
buildings and a safer community.



“The Forest Park Fire Department is proud to serve this
community. Every call, every shift, and every year, our members

show professionalism, dedication, and care for the people of
Forest Park. As we look ahead, our focus remains on protecting our

residents, supporting our firefighters, and building a strong,
sustainable future for our department.”

— Chief Lindsey Hankus, Forest Park Fire Department



Forest Park
Fire Department

 January 2026 
 Report



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31
0

5

10

15

20

25

12

10 10

12 12

13

15

12

11 11

18

11

15

13

24

14

11

12

17

10

11

14

12

19

13

15

11

3

13

11

8

Incidents Per Day January 2026

 395 Total

PAST YEARS’ CALL VOLUME FOR DECEMBER
 2024- 412
 2025- 423



Forest Park Fire Department

Address: 7625 Wilcox St, Forest Park, IL, 60130

FDR-IR: Incident Count by Primary Incident Sub Group

 Report ID: 92759

PRIMARY INCIDENT GROUP / PRIMARY
INCIDENT SUB GROUP

Fire

Fire - Outside Fire

Fire - Structure Fire

Hazardous Situation

Hazardous Situation - Hazard Non-Chemical

Hazardous Situation - Hazardous Materials

Hazardous Situation - Investigation

Medical

Medical - Illness

Medical - Injury / Trauma

Medical - Other

Public Service

10

3

7

13

6

5

2

258

191

66

1

42

COUNT

 This report was generated on : 02/02/2026 04:23 PM

2.53%

0.76%

1.77%

3.29%

1.52%

1.27%

0.51%

65.32%

48.35%

16.71%

0.25%

10.63%

PERCENT OF TOTAL

Page: 1 of 2



 FDR-IR: Incident Count by Primary
Incident Sub Group

Forest Park Fire Department

Address: 7625 Wilcox St, Forest Park, IL,
60130

Total

 Report ID: 92759

PRIMARY INCIDENT GROUP / PRIMARY
INCIDENT SUB GROUP

Public Service - Citizen Assist

Public Service - Alarms (Non Medical)

Public Service - Other

Rescue

Rescue - Structure

No Emergency

No Emergency - False Alarm

No Emergency - Good Intent

No Emergency - Cancelled

Law Enforcement Support

28

11

3

4

4

67

14

20

33

1

1

395

COUNT

 This report was generated on : 02/02/2026 04:23 PM

7.09%

2.78%

0.76%

1.01%

1.01%

16.96%

3.54%

5.06%

8.35%

0.25%

0.25%

100.00%

PERCENT OF TOTAL

Page: 2 of 2

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

http://www.tcpdf.org/


EMS Aid Received
36

Fire Aid Received
25

Fire Aid Given
15

EMS Aid Given
8

Aid Given or Received by Neighboring
Fire Departments

Call Clusters in January 
There were 74 occurrences in which 2-4

incidents occurred simultaneously.



CTA Fire Department Response Activity – January 2026

In January 2026, CTA facilities in Forest Park continued to generate
a significant number of incidents. There were 56 incidents at 711
Des Plaines Avenue (Blue Line). Additional responses included 5
incidents at 701 Harlem Avenue (Blue Line) and 5 incidents at 1

South Harlem Avenue (Green Line).

CTA-related incidents most frequently occurred overnight and early
morning, with 1:00 a.m. the busiest hour in January. 

Responses to CTA-related incidents overlapped with other calls on
multiple occasions throughout January. As a result, Forest Park
relied on mutual aid 24 times during these CTA-related events.

CTA continues to represent a disproportionate share of emergency
service demand compared to other locations within the Village.



Inspections Commercial Residential

Completed 3

In-progress 1

Training On-Shift Hours Off-Shift Hours

Lockout/Tagout 6

EMS Continuing
Education

9

Driver’s Training Road
Course

12



Misc. Activities Admin (Hours) Shift Members (Hours)

Cad Meeting 1

First Due Meeting 0.5

Cook County Sheriff’s
Public Safety Task Force

1

FEMA AFG Webinar 2

Division 11 Chief’s
Meeting

3

Cook County Emergency
Management Table Top

4

ROPH Community
Engagement Council

1.5

Pierce Fire Truck Build
Meeting

6 6

Payroll 2

Training Admin 20

Meetings 5 8

Data Entry 3 17

Scheduling 2 16



Firefighter Weber took the initiative to repair a door at the firehouse. His
willingness to step up and handle the problem saved time, avoided additional

costs, and reflects the pride our members take in maintaining the station.

Our new ambulance has been
delivered. This vehicle was
originally ordered in 2022,

illustrating the long
production timelines facing

fire and EMS agencies
nationwide. Its arrival

strengthens our ability to
continue providing reliable

emergency medical service to
the community.



Thank you to Chief DeLeshe and the
McCook Fire Department for bringing

their truck to our station and taking the
time to see if it would fit in our firehouse.
That hands-on check provided real-world

confirmation and confirmed that the
truck we are ordering will fit in our

building.



 

 

Monthly Report:   January 2026 

Howard Mohr Community Center 

 

BUSING -Busing is Monday – Friday from 8:15am to 3:00pm 
-Provided 50 kids per day  rides to school:  before (am) and after (pm)  
-Provided 474 trips for senior citizens to and from doctor 
appointment/shopping  
-Monthly 124  standing/subscription trips, that is approximately 7 
people per day 

CLUBHOUSE 
BEFORE AND 
AFTER SCHOOL 

-Currently there are 67 kids enrolled in the before and after care 
program. 
-Take state funded students: currently 23 students on Daycare Action 
-January 23rd was a “snow/cold” remote learning day, clubhouse 
assisted 10 kids with school work and zoom classes. 
-Clubhouse  6:30am to 8:00am and 2:45pm to 6:00pm 
-Provide full care for kids when school is off 

SENIOR  
ACTIVITIES/TRIPS 

-Senior Day trips to 1. Eataly in Chicago/Todd & Holland in Forest Park 
and lunch: total of 20 people on the trip   2. Hollywood casino in Joliet: 
total of 44 people on the trip. 
-Senior Movies: 2nd Thursday of month, 4 people attended 
-Senior Bingo: 4th Thursday of the month, 62 people attended, served 
lunch and 10 games of Bingo 

CLUBS/RENTALS -Senior Club meets on Tuesday Mornings: have 37 total members and 
enrollment for 2026 just began 
-Kiwanis Club meets evening the 3rd Monday:  8 people attended 
-Boy Scouts meets evening two Thursdays: about 50 people attended 
-Pinochle group meets daytime on  first and third Thursday, 16 people 
attend 
-Disable Veterans (DAV) meets evening second Thursday, 60 people 
attend 
-Airplane/Checkerboard Club meets evening 3rd Thursday, 25 people 
attend 
-Craft Club meets evening 3rd Wednesday, 12 people attend 

OTHER/FUTURE 
PLANNING 

-Food Pantry, assisted 32 residents with food 
-AARP Tax Aide, began taking appointments 1/14/2026, all 
appointments booked: 375 appointments 
-Senior Chair exercise, 7 people attended meets Tuesdays 1:00pm 
- Fit4Life Line dance class, 20 people attended weekly on Wednesdays 
at 11:30am 
-Develop new program for Seniors “Lunch Club” will meet first 
Thursday at local restaurant 

 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 1,776.00          
Public Affairs 142,765.25      
Police Department 14,428.06        
Community Center 4,615.46          
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 240,917.88      
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 1,988.00          
Department of Health & Safety 6,261.50          
Streets and Public Improvements 126,201.69      
Public Property 48,996.94        
Seizure 11,183.39        
Federal Customs 26,761.27        
TIF 11,703.18        
VIP 19,586.74        
Water Department 270,308.38      

TOTAL 927,493.74$    

  ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 9th Day of February 2026

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Megan Roach, Deputy Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-4220-300  Total Parking Solutions Inc 01/20/2026 472.00             
100-00-000-4220-300  Total Parking Solutions Inc 01/20/2026 345.00             
100-00-000-4220-300  Total Parking Solutions Inc 01/20/2026 659.00             
100-00-000-4230-135 Gilberto Arias III 11/07/2025 300.00             

Refunds and Allocations 1,776.00          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 4,633.62          
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 4,389.78          
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 69.30               
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 157.50             
100-10-101-6120-305  Forest Park Boy Scouts Troop 4107 10/23/2025 230.00             
100-10-101-6120-305 Rachell Entler 01/30/2026 41.38               
100-10-101-6120-305  West Central Municipal Conf 02/07/2026 600.00             
100-10-101-6150-120 Rachell Entler 01/30/2026 405.09             
100-10-101-6150-120 Rachell Entler 01/30/2026 5.26                 
100-10-101-6150-120 Rachell Entler 01/30/2026 7.55                 
100-10-101-6150-120  Natl Public Emp Labor Relations 01/26/2026 975.00             
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 236.34             
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 42.43               
100-10-101-6150-202  Checkpoint Press Inc 01/20/2026 397.00             
100-10-101-6150-202  C.O.P.S. and F.I.R.E Personnel Testing 01/23/2026 250.00             
100-10-101-6150-202  C.O.P.S. and F.I.R.E Personnel Testing 01/23/2026 625.00             
100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 12/31/2025 825.00             
100-10-101-6150-300  West Suburban Cons Dispatch Center 01/15/2026 122,830.00      
100-10-101-7000-150  Telcom Innovations Group LLC 01/20/2026 160.00             
100-11-111-6100-120  Proxit Technology Solutions Inc 01/16/2026 5,135.00          
100-11-111-6110-110  Proxit Technology Solutions Inc 01/16/2026 750.00             

Public Affairs 142,765.25      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-121-5005-030 Joe Schick 01/20/2026 1,648.00          
100-12-123-6145-202  Bio-One Chicago LLC. 01/14/2026 225.00             
100-12-123-6145-202  Kendall County Sheriffs Office 01/26/2026 500.00             
100-12-123-6145-202  McDonalds 01/20/2026 5,412.48          
100-12-124-6150-114  DataCom Software 01/20/2026 449.00             
100-12-125-6145-204  DACRA Adjudication System 11/30/2025 5,401.00          
100-12-126-6140-112  Informatics Holdings Inc 01/23/2026 752.54             
100-12-126-6145-126  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 40.04               

Police Department 14,428.06        



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-154-6170-110  The Fireside Theatre 01/22/2026 2,378.46          
100-15-154-6170-110 Tami Manton 01/21/2026 1,950.00          
100-15-169-6160-100  Elmhurst Occupational Health 10/31/2025 76.00               
100-15-169-6160-100  Elmhurst Occupational Health 11/30/2025 211.00             

Community Center 4,615.46          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-21-211-5000-012  MGT Impact Solutions LLC 01/21/2026 7,250.00          
100-21-211-5000-012  MGT Impact Solutions LLC 01/27/2026 5,452.00          
100-21-211-5005-002  Blue Cross-Blue Shield of Ill 01/16/2026 191,226.90      
100-21-211-5005-003  Dearborn Life Insurance Company 01/07/2026 1,054.44          
100-21-211-5005-003  Dearborn Life Insurance Company 01/07/2026 1,054.44          
100-21-211-5005-004  Dearborn Life Insurance Company 01/07/2026 2,208.94          
100-21-211-5005-004  Dearborn Life Insurance Company 01/07/2026 2,208.94          
100-21-211-5005-004  Standard Insurance Company 01/08/2026 26.50               
100-21-211-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 919.35             
100-21-211-6140-102  FED EX 01/21/2026 48.35               
100-21-211-6140-104  Office 8 01/20/2026 293.94             
100-21-211-6140-104  Pitney Bowes Inc 01/28/2026 276.97             
100-21-211-6140-140 Megan Roach 01/22/2026 237.59             
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 01/15/2026 519.35             
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 01/15/2026 807.55             
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 01/25/2026 126.98             
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 01/25/2026 63.48               
100-21-211-7000-080  GFC Leasing - WI 01/17/2026 1,709.16          
100-22-221-6320-515  Axon Enterprise Inc 01/15/2026 21,600.00        
100-22-221-6320-930  Air One Equipment Inc 11/12/2025 3,833.00          

Accounts and Finance (Clerks Office) 240,917.88      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-6140-200  Amazon.com 12/31/2025 43.58               
100-30-302-6110-150  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 138.19             
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 12/09/2025 285.00             
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 01/06/2026 230.99             
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 01/13/2026 90.00               
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 01/13/2026 174.95             
100-30-302-6145-105 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 01/13/2026 120.00             
100-30-302-6145-321  State Chemical Industrial Products 01/21/2026 226.20             
100-30-302-6145-321  State Chemical Industrial Products 01/21/2026 48.94               
100-30-303-6145-300  Amazon.com 01/22/2026 49.78               
100-30-303-6145-300  Amazon.com 01/22/2026 22.53               
100-30-303-6145-300  Henry Schein 01/12/2026 150.10             
100-30-303-6145-300  Henry Schein 01/26/2026 87.84               
100-30-303-6145-300  Henry Schein 01/26/2026 319.90             

Accounts and Finance (Fire Department) 1,988.00          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017  AMS Electric Inc 01/25/2026 1,260.00          
100-40-401-5000-017 Tariq Dandan 02/01/2026 150.00             
100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 02/26/2026 675.00             
100-40-402-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 1,018.50          
100-40-402-6150-232 Tariq Dandan 02/01/2026 966.00             
100-40-403-6140-206  Smithereen Pest Mgmt Services 02/01/2026 1,200.00          
100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 01/22/2026 992.00             

Department of Health and Safety 6,261.50          



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6140-202  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/07/2026 (149.00)            
100-50-502-6140-202  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/07/2026 149.00             
100-50-502-6140-202  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/07/2026 228.94             
100-50-502-6180-160  Com Ed 01/28/2026 4,671.02          
100-50-502-6185-102  Lakeshore Recycling Systems LLC 01/15/2026 1,183.57          
100-50-502-6185-106  Morton Salt Inc (MSI) 01/16/2026 4,661.87          
100-50-502-6185-106  Morton Salt Inc (MSI) 01/20/2026 7,512.49          
100-50-502-6185-106  Morton Salt Inc (MSI) 01/26/2026 5,889.89          
100-50-502-6185-106  Morton Salt Inc (MSI) 02/02/2026 11,682.25        
100-50-502-6185-110  Traffic Control & Protection 01/22/2026 73.70               
100-50-502-6185-112  Republic Services #551 01/15/2026 1,773.81          
100-50-502-6185-501  Republic Services #551 01/15/2026 49,011.14        
100-50-502-6185-502  Republic Services #551 01/15/2026 34,646.80        
100-50-502-6185-503  Republic Services #551 01/15/2026 4,866.21          

Streets and Public Improvements 126,201.69      



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/23/2026 440.00             
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/23/2026 1,217.96          
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/23/2026 878.26             
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/30/2026 5,402.91          
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/30/2026 2,490.92          
100-55-553-6180-150  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/31/2026 1,348.90          
100-55-553-6180-152  Lyons Pinner Electric Co 01/31/2026 595.00             
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/20/2026 487.65             
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 01/23/2026 121.55             
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 01/12/2026 1,790.85          
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 01/14/2026 10,691.63        
100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 01/16/2026 181.07             
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 01/15/2026 239.10             
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 01/16/2026 59.11               
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 01/23/2026 205.60             
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 01/26/2026 62.00               
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 01/26/2026 228.44             
100-55-570-6155-106  Kimball Midwest 01/27/2026 204.68             
100-55-570-6155-106  Kimball Midwest 01/27/2026 537.00             
100-55-570-6155-106  Lindco Equipment Sales Inc 01/15/2026 189.12             
100-55-570-6155-106  Lindco Equipment Sales Inc 01/20/2026 102.06             
100-55-570-6155-106  Lindco Equipment Sales Inc 01/20/2026 207.60             
100-55-570-6155-106  Lindco Equipment Sales Inc 01/20/2026 10,567.75        
100-55-570-6155-106  Lindco Equipment Sales Inc 01/23/2026 450.43             
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. 01/22/2026 333.54             
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. 01/22/2026 321.05             
100-55-570-6155-106  Snap on Industrial 01/08/2026 95.08               
100-55-570-6155-106  Wholesale Direct Inc. 01/21/2026 305.08             
100-55-570-6155-106  Winter Equipment Co. Inc. 01/16/2026 2,310.00          
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 01/13/2026 9.29                 
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 01/15/2026 126.46             
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 01/15/2026 8.44                 
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 01/23/2026 45.60               
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 01/24/2026 140.08             
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 01/29/2026 75.60               
100-55-570-6155-112  BC Body Craft Inc 01/05/2026 1,982.64          
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 01/19/2026 1,174.77          
100-55-570-6155-112  Commercial Tire Service 01/19/2026 829.72             



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-570-6155-112  NOBS TOWING 01/15/2026 1,100.00          
100-55-570-6155-112  NOBS TOWING 01/30/2026 1,100.00          
100-55-570-6155-112  XTreme Graphics Lettering 01/28/2026 340.00             

Public Property 48,996.94        



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 196.95             
230-00-000-6900-230  Currie Motors Chevrolet 01/14/2026 114.14             
230-00-000-6900-230  Factory Motor Parts Co 01/12/2026 177.30             
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois State Police 12/04/2025 2,700.00          
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois State Police 12/04/2025 750.00             
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois State Police 12/04/2025 2,159.00          
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois State Police 12/04/2025 2,368.00          
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois State Police 01/08/2026 2,567.00          
230-00-000-6900-230  Illinois Secretary of State 02/12/2026 151.00             

Seizure 11,183.39        



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-231  CDS Office Technologies 01/14/2026 1,040.00          
232-00-000-6900-231  CellTech LLC 01/22/2026 1,000.00          
232-00-000-6900-231  Eagle Uniform Company Inc 01/19/2026 144.00             
232-00-000-6900-231  J.G. Uniforms 01/22/2026 25.00               
232-00-000-6900-231 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 01/01/2026 74.99               
232-00-000-6900-231 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 01/19/2026 505.07             
232-00-000-6900-231  Axon Enterprise Inc 01/15/2026 23,972.21        

Federal Customs 26,761.27        



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

304-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 3,244.38          
304-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 210.00             
304-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 441.44             
306-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 441.43             
306-00-000-6180-114  Misfits Construction Company 01/16/2026 5,400.00          
309-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 1,524.50          
309-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 441.43             

TIF 11,703.18        



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 918.75             
312-00-000-6100-115  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 227.00             
312-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 74.02               
312-00-000-6180-114  Misfits Construction Company 01/09/2026 1,800.00          
312-00-000-6180-114  Misfits Construction Company 01/16/2026 3,800.00          
312-00-000-6180-114  Traffic Control & Protection 01/20/2026 1,131.50          
312-00-000-6180-200  Comcast 01/08/2026 200.21             
312-00-000-6180-200  Colley Elevator Co 02/01/2026 310.00             
312-00-000-6180-210  Comcast 01/12/2026 2.31                 
312-00-000-6180-215  Illinois Alarm 02/01/2026 255.00             
312-00-000-6180-220  Air One Equipment Inc 01/29/2026 349.97             
312-00-000-6180-220  Amazon.com 12/30/2026 428.39             
312-00-000-6180-220  Door Systems 01/16/2026 7,590.00          
312-00-000-6180-220  HOME DEPOT CREDIT 01/12/2026 158.78             
312-00-000-6180-220  Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. 01/23/2026 210.48             
312-00-000-6180-230  Illinois Alarm 01/22/2026 99.50               
312-00-000-6180-230  Illinois Alarm 01/26/2026 178.00             
312-00-000-6180-240  Comcast 01/07/2026 2.31                 
312-00-000-6180-240  Comcast 01/22/2026 275.61             
312-00-000-6180-240  CCP INDUSTRIES INC 11/19/2025 228.17             
312-00-000-6180-240  Illinois Alarm 01/09/2026 326.75             
312-00-000-6180-240  Pivotal Weather LLC 01/28/2026 79.99               
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 01/08/2026 160.00             
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 01/13/2026 160.00             
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 01/15/2026 160.00             
312-00-000-7000-312  K-Five Hodgkins LLC 01/22/2026 160.00             
312-00-000-7000-312  Total Parking Solutions Inc 01/20/2026 300.00             

VIP 19,586.74        



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-80-800-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 12/31/2025 1,653.75          
501-80-800-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 919.35             
501-80-800-6100-110  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/31/2025 3,900.00          
501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 36.01               
501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 01/22/2026 36.01               
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 01/16/2026 251.81             
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 01/17/2026 52.66               
501-80-800-6800-150  Centurion Plumbing Company 01/29/2026 1,075.90          
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 01/29/2026 1,075.91          
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 01/29/2026 12,766.25        
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 01/29/2026 6,496.68          
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 01/29/2026 7,472.47          
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 01/29/2026 9,647.24          
501-80-800-6800-151  Core & Main LP 01/21/2026 95.66               
501-80-800-6800-151  Franzen Plumbing Inc 01/16/2026 2,824.00          
501-80-800-6800-153  Comcast 01/06/2026 98.65               
501-80-800-7000-001  Veregy Central LLC 12/31/2025 221,906.03      

Water Department 270,308.38      







2025 Wellness Survey Report & Community Assessment 
SUMMARY 

Village of Forest Park: Board of Health 
 

I.​ Abstract Summary 
From January to April of 2025, The Board of Health of Forest Park, with supervision by Rachel            
Entler, Village Administrator, facilitated a two-pronged approach to community assessment.  We 
designed and administered a (25) question survey to the residents, and designed and facilitated 3  
round table interviews with community providers.  
 

II.​ Operating Theories 
We began with the operating beliefs that we would find: there are inadequate community 
services for mental health; residents are not aware of how to find the services that are available; 
there are barriers to accessibility including affordability, fear, transportation, distrust, disability, 
cultural appropriateness, etc.; service providers are not fully working together nor aware of the 
Village’s services; and some facets of the population have more barriers to accessibility 
including those with lower income, people of color, Seniors, non-English speaking, and other 
minority groups such as LGBTQ+. 
 

III.​ Results Summary 
Our findings were partially reinforced by our research, which needs further expansion.  
The survey was completed by 158 residents, or 2.2% of households(1 survey per household.) We 
would prefer at least 5% participation to be statistically significant.  
We were able to interview 7 providers from 6 community bodies, and this number could be 
expanded as well.  
 
As expected, providers described regular encounters with people experiencing distress related to 
mental health, substance use, homelessness, family conflict, elderly needing assistance, domestic 
violence, financial stress, food insecurity and more. A desire for increased staff training, support 
and resources was consistently expressed to address overwhelm and burnout. 
 
Providers also expressed a desire for a central location, database and/or booklet/handout with 
current information about providers of care with information about what they provide and how to 
access services including acceptable payment methods and accepted forms of healthcare. 
 
The majority of survey respondents believed Forest Park was a “safe and healthy place”,  and 
“an inclusive and welcoming place for me and my family” (80%- 83%). However, a high number 
of households reported experiencing anxiety and/or depression (69% and 56%, 3-7x the national 
average.) However, the survey was overrepresented by White respondents and Seniors, and 
slightly by persons with disabilities and households with children, and underrepresented by 
Black, Latino and Asian residents, those under the poverty level and without health insurance. 
Our respondents were rather well resourced, given that 69% of households had recently 
participated in 1 or more services for mental health, (although the survey does not ask where 
these services are located,) and 88% were able to use Insurance or Medicare/Medicaid to pay for 
them. Between 2-18% reported barriers to treatment such as: their insurance doesn’t cover 
mental health, their provider was out of network, they could not afford it, could not find locally, 



2 

there were inconvenient appointment times or long waiting lists, or they did not know how to 
find services, they distrust providers or do not have transportation.   
 

IV.​ Recommendations to the Village 
 

We devised 5 primary recommendations: 
 

1.​ The Village should invest in a comprehensive, clear and regularly updated directory of 
resources that can be used by relevant stakeholders. 

2.​ The Village should invest in personnel to facilitate mental health resourcing for people in 
need, preferably a Licensed Clinical Social Worker. 

3.​ The Village should form and strengthen strategic partnerships with neighboring 
communities to improve access to and awareness of relevant resources. 

4.​ The Board of Health should regularly solicit feedback from residents on the state of 
health/mental health in Forest Park.  

5.​ The Village should better help the Helpers (i.e. provide more training and support 
services to front-line civic employees regarding their own mental health)  
 
Please refer to the full report, attached, for further information. We appreciate this 
opportunity to be of service to the residents, leadership and providers or Forest Park. 
 

February 1, 2026 
 
Board Members: 
Mishawn Purnell-O’Neal, MPH, Chairperson 
Karen Considine , LCSW, Secretary 
Lean Shapiro, M.Ed.  (Resigned 8-25) 
Susan Buss, LCSW 
Lindsay Baish-Flynn, LPC 
Casey Castle, LCSW, PMH-C 

 



3 

Village of Forest Park: Board of Health  

 Review of Activities August 2023 to February 2026 

The Board of Health held its first meeting August 7, 2023, and has met 26 times to date. 

Members: Mishawn Purnell-O’Neil, MPH(Chair), Karen Considine, LCSW (Secretary), Susan Buss, 
LCSW, Lindsay Baish-Flynn, LPC, Leah Shapiro M.Ed.  (left position in June 2025), Casey Castle 
LCSW (joined in September 2025).   

1.​ Attendance: In addition to the Board members, the following individuals have attended meetings  
a.​ Assistant to the Mayor at the time and now Village Administrator Rachell Entler attended 

the first 2 meetings (August and September 2023) 
b.​  Commissioner Maria Maxham also attended the first 2 meetings 
c.​  Commissioner Jessica Voogd attended the first meeting (August 2023) 
d.​  Commissioner Ryan Nero attended the First Focus Group meeting on 2/13/24) 
e.​ Vicki Rakowski, Library Director attended the 2nd focus group on 3/12/24 as a member of 

the public)  
f.​ No other members of the public have attended a meeting nor submitted questions or 

concerns to the Board since the start date of 8/7/23.  

2.​ No specific instructions or directives have been given to the Board of Health by Village 
leadership, other than to “Focus on Mental Health”. The Village Administrator expressed support 
for the initial ideas and goals generated at the first 2 meetings. 
 

3.​  A mission statement was created: 
​ The mission of the Village of Forest Park’s Board of Health is to improve the mental and emotional health 
and wellness of people who live, work, or gather in Forest Park. The Board enacts this mission by promoting 
comprehensive, equal access to mental health resources in the Village in hopes that doing so will contribute to 
overall improved quality of life. This mission calls on the Board to lead the following activities:  

●​ Act as advisors to the Mayor and Village Commissioners in matters of mental health programming and 
ways to improve access to services for community members. 

●​ Be advocates for the mental health needs of the community through research, discovery, and synthesis of 
those findings to relevant stakeholders.  

●​ Create cohesive collaboration between existing resources and entities both in and outside of the Village to 
streamline programming and services. 

●​ Partner with relevant entities to promote the awareness of mental health programming and services in the 
community. 

 
4.​ Goals and objectives were identified. The initial focus was to collect data about Mental Health 

Issues in the community by means of focus groups for Village Stakeholders and by surveying the 
village residents.   
 

5.​ Data gathering:  
 

a.​ Two Focus groups were held: 2/13/24 and 3/12/24. Representatives from the following 
agencies participated:  

i.​ Police Department 
ii.​ Fire Department 



4 

iii.​ Community Center (via individual interview) 
iv.​ Library 
v.​ District 91 

vi.​ Police Crisis Counselor (Ascension Pro-care contracted employee) 
vii.​ Ascension Pro-Care Center (additional information via individual meeting) 

 
b.​ Focus Group Findings were summarized 
c.​ Community Survey Questions were finalized 
d.​ Community Survey launched 1/13/2025 and concluded 3/31/25  
e.​ The report with findings and recommendations is complete and pending presentation to 

the Village Council.     
f.​ Additional Focus Groups or collaborative meetings to include service providers may be 

scheduled in the future. (exp: hospitals, outpatient mental health providers, substance 
abuse service providers, private practitioners, health and housing providers, supportive 
services (NAMI), etc.    

 
6.​ Board members have represented the BOH by attendance and involvement in the following 

community meetings and events:   
 

a.​ NAMI information session at FPPL (2023) 
b.​ NAMI- Mental Health First Aid training at FPPL (youth MH session) 
c.​  Brushes on the Bridge (May 2024) 
d.​ Night Ministries outreach at CTA Blue Line 
e.​ FP St. Pat’s parade (2025) (handing out flyers with survey access code) 
f.​  Posted Flyer “Glimmers” around community (for Mental Health Month 2024) 
g.​ Posting a Mental Health related write-up in Village Newsletter beginning during MH 

Month and suicide prevention months in 2025 and continuing with 1-2 submissions per 
month since then  

h.​ Attended a collaborative community meeting at D91 
i.​ Attended the Forest Park Women in Leadership event 
j.​ Attended a  presentation by Thrive at League of Women voters’ event  
k.​ Participating in Regional Behavioral Health Collaborative (Cook County Mental Health 

Board Initiative) 
l.​ Attended a meeting of the Mental Health Consortium of Oak Park and River Forest in 

January 2026 
m.​ Met with Chair of Community Mental Health Commission of Oak Park in Fall 2025 
n.​ Met with Oak Park River Forest Community Foundation re: funding assistance and 

collaboration  
o.​ Collaborated with Forest Park Public Library staff to create a speaker/activity series 

“Well-Being Wednesdays”.  The series launched in December 2025 and is scheduled to 
occur on the 2nd Wednesday of each month during 2026.   

   
7.​  Board members have used their own resources to fund the following:  

a.​ Snacks, beverages and set-up items for 2 focus groups 
b.​ Snacks, beverages and raffle items for first 2 “Well-Being Wednesdays”   
c.​ Paper and printing/ink for meeting notes/documents (when not provided by the Village)  
d.​ Colored paper and tape for “Glimmers” flyers 
e.​ Entry fee and Additional art supplies for “Brushes on the Bridge’    



5 

2025 Wellness Survey Report & Community Assessment 

Village of Forest Park 

Board of Health 
​
 
 

From January to March of 2025, the Forest Park Board of Health administered a survey 
of the mental health needs of Forest Park for the first time. The specific goals were to 
assess residents’ opinions of the awareness and accessibility of resources and obtain 
feedback on the role the Village has played, or could play, in supporting this cause. 
 
In addition, between March and April of 2024, the Board completed interviews and round 
table discussions with community stakeholders to gain awareness of services provided, 
amount of collaboration, and perceived needs. 
  

I.   Introduction 
 

Forest Park began recruiting to reinstate the Board of Health in 2023, which had been 
dormant for several years. In April of 2023, five individuals with extensive education and 
experience in the fields of mental health, community health and education, and marketing 
were appointed by the Village Council. 

To the Board’s awareness, this is the first-ever survey of this nature to be completed in 
Forest Park. Therefore, there is no previous literature to compare, nor published reports. 
In addition, we are not aware of any community surveys in general to inquire on 
residents’ level of satisfaction with Village mental health services. 
  
Deployment of the survey and round table interviews began as ways to determine the 
Board’s directives. As the Board was in the process of completing the interviews, it 
developed a working theory that there were insufficient services available, that residents 
were not generally aware of said services, the services may not be accessible (financially 
and/or otherwise), and that various stakeholders that provide mental health services in the 
Village were not sufficiently working together. The Board also postulated that these 
responses would vary by income, and possibly by race, age, language, sexual/gender 
identity and family size. Thus the survey evolved to assess the residents’ views of these 
questions and invite further input. 

To summarize, the operating theories were: 

●​ There are inadequate community services for mental health 
●​ Residents are not aware of how to find the services that are available 
●​ There are barriers to accessibility including: affordability, fear, transportation, distrust, 

disability, cultural appropriateness, etc. 
●​ Mental Health service providers and stakeholders are not fully working together nor 

aware of the Village’s services 



6 

●​ Some facets of the population have more barriers to accessibility, including those with 
lower income, people of color, seniors, non-English speaking residents, and other 
minority groups such as LGBTQ+ individuals 

 II.  Method 

A.​ Round Table Discussions 

1. Design 

Charged with the Village Administration’s directive to “focus on mental health”, the newly 
reinstated Board embarked on a two-phase inquiry process to gather data, in hopes of learning 
what the Village needs to support mental health issues. This inquiry process included conducting 
roundtable focus groups with key Village stakeholders and deploying a community survey. The 
results of the community survey follow this summary.  

The Board hosted the roundtable interviews on February 13, 2024; March 12, 2024; and one 
individual interview on April 10, 2024.  Participants included representatives from: the Forest 
Park Fire Department, Forest Park Public Library, Ascension Pro Care, Forest Park School 
District 91, Forest Park Police Department and the Mohr Community Center.  

Each group was asked the same four questions:    
1.​ Describe the mental health issues you encounter on a day-to-day basis in your work and 

the work of your department/agency. 
  

2.​ What do you believe the greatest needs are around resources and responses to mental 
health issues in the Village? 
  

3.​ In what ways could the Village improve access to mental health resources and things that 
would improve your ability to do your job? Wish list?    
 

4.​ What is working well in the Village around responding to Mental Health concerns? 

The full data with responses to each question from each stakeholder representative is available 
in a separate report. 

2. Results    

Question 1: Describe the Mental Health Issues you encounter on a day-to-day basis in your 
work and the work of your department/agency. 

Each stakeholder reported regular encounters with people experiencing distress related to a 
variety of issues including mental health, substance use, homelessness, family conflict, elderly 
needing assistance, domestic violence, financial stress, food insecurity and others. 



7 

Each stakeholder has a different role and responsibility in managing people with the above 
concerns. First responders have official protocol they follow, whereas community sites such as 
the Community Center and Library find themselves responding to situations where they have had 
to adapt their skills and learn to manage people in a variety of situations outside of their 
“official” roles or areas of expertise. The School District is well-resourced with trained 
professionals to respond to issues of mental health for their students. The School District also 
reported fewer situations considered “mental health emergencies” than the other participating 
stakeholders. 

The first responders have seen an increase in calls related to overdose/drug related issues since 
2020. They also report seeing repeat calls from the same people around mental health issues.   

Question 2: What do you believe the greatest needs are around resources and responses to 
mental health issues in the Village? 

Each stakeholder expressed the need for a central location or resource for direct in-person 
assistance, assessment, coordination, facilitation and follow-up for mental health care and other 
social services. The need for this to be available in real time and not as a “after the fact” follow 
up was mentioned by all participants. 

The participants also expressed needing a central location, database and/or booklet/handout with 
current information about providers of care with information about what they provide and how to 
access services including acceptable payment methods and accepted forms of insurance or other 
healthcare benefits. This information would need to be kept up-to-date and vetted professionally 
to be useful. It should be noted that each stakeholder currently has its own version of a flyer, 
handout, resource database, etc. All are different and do not include the same resources.  

Other common themes: 

●​ The need for care navigators/case managers for more consistent follow-up and assistance 
with connecting people to appropriate and available resources   

●​ Faster access to care: waiting lists at community mental health centers are long. Private 
service providers have shorter waits but are often not an option for those with low 
income/Medicaid 

●​ More shelters and longer-term housing options for unhoused people 
●​ Improved coordination and communication between Village entities who serve the same 

populations  

Question 3: What are ways the Village could improve access to mental health resources and 
things that would improve your ability to do your job? 

All participating stakeholders mentioned frustration around what they describe as a lack of 
coordinated follow-up and ongoing case management of those they try to help in a moment of 
distress or crisis. This appears to lead to repeated interactions with the same people for similar 
reasons. Other common recommendations from the roundtable stakeholders to improve mental 
health resources included:   



8 

●​ Improve collaboration and communication between existing departments and resources 
●​ Offer public education about systemic resources and alternative responses for mental 

health/substance abuse/homelessness emergencies to reduce the need to involve 
police/EMT’s when possible 

●​ Create a “full services 24-hour social services triage center”. A central place for 
assessment, respite, navigation of referrals and ongoing case management. 

●​ More attention by the Village on root causes (poverty, oppression, systemic racism, etc.), 
with related prevention and education 

●​ More services in multiple languages 
●​ Increased availability of a social worker/case manager/mental health care navigator 

dedicated to the Village 
●​ Better access to services at Ascension Pro-Care (which covers Proviso township) and 

Thrive (which serves Oak Park township, but also serves Forest Park residents who have 
Medicare/Medicaid and other insurance). 

●​ Stronger linkage to and follow-up with hospitals to ongoing community care 
●​ Funding to help offset the costs of emergency services provided at the Blue and Green 

lines that are unrecovered 

Question 4: What is working well in the Village around responding to mental health 
concerns? 

All the stakeholders expressed good working relationships with other Village stakeholders 
represented at the meetings, even if there is not an official protocol for service coordination. All 
the participating stakeholders expressed a desire to receive continued training and support around 
managing mental health issues for those they serve, as well as for themselves and their staff.   

There were also notable answers from individual stakeholders that paint a more detailed picture 
about what is working well within existing systems: 

●​ The School District has had fewer calls to the Police Department. The school district is 
well resourced with social workers, counselors, youth intervention specialists, a 
restorative justice intervention model, and a variety of evidence based positive behavioral 
interventions. 

●​ The Library has created a host of things to respond to mental health issues and other 
social service needs, including: the Forest Park Cares fund, hosting NAMI to present 
about their programs and services, providing training for staff and establishing systems 
and protocols for handling crisis situations, and creating a database of social services and 
mental health resources. The Library also spearheaded a collaborative meeting that 
included the Village, D-91, Community Center and Park District to discuss the common 
issues each department faces including responding to mental health issues. These 
meetings appear to be on hiatus at present.  

●​ The Fire Department staff receives a mental health overview as well as training with the 
safety coordinator. Plans are in place to expand training to include resilience, self-care 
and coping mechanisms, as there is recognition of the impact of their work on physical 
and mental health of the staff. 



9 

●​ The Police Department uses the Cook County Sheriff’s Mental Health Crisis support 
call-in service, which they have found very helpful in responding to mental health 
emergencies. All officers receive training in mental health, trauma-informed 
care/responses and de-escalation techniques. Some officers have completed crisis 
intervention training (CIT) as well. 

●​ The Community center has good working relationships with all of the participating 
stakeholders. Many stakeholders identified the Community Center as the “go-to” for 
referral information or assistance with a variety of situations. The Community Center 
often serves as a default social services access provider beyond its regular programming. 
Examples of this include assisting walk-in clients with Medicaid and food stamp 
applications, and coordinating care for elderly residents. The Community Center makes 
many referrals to local community mental health centers for both walk-in clients and 
those that participate in their regularly scheduled programming. They have also created 
their own list of available services in the surrounding communities.   

 
B.​ Community Survey 

 
1.​ Design: 

 
Over a series of months, the Board designed a questionnaire with 25 questions: 14 were 
demographic or informational, four were multiple choice regarding experiences or coverage, five 
were qualitative opinions on a Likert 5-point scale, and two were open-ended (see attached). 

  
The questionnaire was offered in survey form, in English only, in two ways: a link to an online 
version and a paper version. The online survey was marketed online through Village social 
media pages and others, and to the community via a flyer posted in business windows and a 
postcard-size sheet left as a handout (see attached).  
  

2.​ Participants: 
 
According to 2023 census data, Forest Park had 14,339 residents. The household total was 7,035, 
which is a more accurate response measure, as the survey directions asked for one response per 
household. The Board obtained 158 total responses, of which 128 originated online and 30 were 
completed on paper. This equates to a response rate of 2.2 percent (based on number of 
responses/households). This response rate does not yield statistically significant data (the original 
goal was five percent response rate), but rather directional data. The lower response rate may be 
attributed to the Board being a new and unknown entity and this being the first attempt in the 
community. 

  
Since the responses were obtained by volunteer and opportunity sampling – meaning, some 
residents responded to a posted flyer or online prompt (“volunteered”), and some were simply 
available or willing when offered the survey. While this is a simple and easy method, the 
response sample will not be very representative as it depends on who is willing and available at 
the time. “Snowball sampling” is probably also accurate as the Board made requests to certain 
groups of folks to spread the word and promote survey engagement. 



10 

  
3.​ Procedure: 

 
Five Board Members participated in designing the survey questions and rollout plan. The Board 
began with an online launch through the Village newsletter (online) and then flyering by placing 
posters in business and civic site windows. The Board supported the distribution with in-person 
networking at two community events and sitting at a table at the library with surveys available. 
The Board monitored response rate then re-announced the survey online through the Village and 
social media sites. 
 
The paper survey was made available at several community sites including the Library, the Park 
District, Village Hall, the Community Center, and a large condo building for senior residents 
(55+).  Sealed boxes were provided for participants to insert their surveys to protect 
confidentiality. One Board member spent time at the Library, the School District and the condo 
building to solicit survey participation and assist in completion, as needed. Two members 
attended the Forest Park St. Patrick’s Day Parade to hand out fliers, and two others attended the 
Women in Leadership event, to distribute postcards. 
 
To encourage participation, the Board emphasized and promised anonymity and confidentiality. 
That is, residents could take the paper or online survey without the format collecting any 
identifying information. They had the option to provide their name and email to either a) be 
included in a raffle, or b) be contacted for further comment. In addition, all questions were 
optional and possible to avoid. 

  
4.  Results 

In summary, the majority of respondents felt Forest Park was a “safe and healthy place”,  and 
“inclusive and welcoming place for me and my family” (80 percent and 83 percent agreed or 
strongly agreed). 

A high number of households that responded contain someone/multiple members experiencing 
anxiety and/or depression (69 percent and 56 percent). This is high when compared to 19.1 and 
8.3 percent of U.S. adults reporting depression and anxiety (respectively). These percentages 
were arrived at differently thus cannot be directly compared. The survey was overrepresented by 
White respondents and Seniors, and slightly by persons with disabilities and households with 
children, and underrepresented by Black, Latino and Asian residents, and those under the poverty 
level and without health insurance. 

There were several hypotheses made by the Board prior to the survey: There are inadequate 
mental health services available, the public is not aware how to find the ones that do exist, there 
are barriers to accessibility, and providers are not working together. The survey in part supported 
these hypotheses, with some caveats. 

●​ 69 percent of households participated in one or more services for mental health, although 
the survey does not ask where these services are located 

●​ 88 percent were able to use insurance or Medicare/Medicaid to pay for mental health 
services 



11 

●​ The most common reasons that respondents could not access services were inadequate 
insurance coverage for mental health and that their provider was out of network (16 and 
18 percent, respectively). These reasons were followed by unaffordability (14%), 
inability to find local services (14%), inconvenient appointment times(13%), or long 
waiting lists (11%). Even fewer reported not knowing how to find (6%), distrust of 
providers (4%) or transportation (3%) as inhibiting factors.   

 
The 2020 Census reports the following information about Forest Park: 
 
Population: 14,339 
Median Household Income: $81,323 
Education: 49.8 percent hold a  Bachelor's Degree or higher 
Employment: 64.7 percent Employment rate 
Total Housing units; 7,777 
Total Households: 7,035 
Language other than English spoken at home: 15.4 percent (10 percent lower than Illinois) 
Naturalized U.S. citizen: 63.4 percent/Not a U.S. citizen: 36.6 percent 
Veterans: 6.5 percent (50 percent higher than Illinois) 
Not measured: LGBTQ status 

Our goal was to obtain a 5-10 percent response rate, which would be 352-704 respondants. 
We achieved 2.2%. 

Of the 158 respondents, the demographics compared to Forest Park in general as follows: 
                                             ​         ​ Forest Park​ Survey         ​ Representation 
Race​  
        ​ White                                  ​ 47.1%          ​ 85% ​         ​ Over​  
        ​ Black/African American     ​ 30.9%          ​ 10% ​         ​ Under 
        ​ Hispanic/Latino                  ​ 11.3%          ​ 2.5%​         ​ Under 
        ​ Asian                                   ​ 6.2%​         ​ ?      ​         ​ Under 
        ​ Other                                   ​ 4.7%​         ​ ? 
        ​ American Indian/                ​ .4%  ​         ​ ? 
        ​ Alaska Native 
        ​ Prefer not to answer​                                 ​ 2.5%            ​                     ​                                              
Poverty Rate                                   ​ 10.8%          ​ 4%* ​         ​ Under 
Without Health Care Coverage      ​ 5.4%​         ​ 2.5%​         ​ Under          ​  
Disability                                        ​ 13.7%          ​ 19% ​         ​ Over 
Children                              ​         ​ 17.3%          ​ 22%**         ​ Over 
Seniors                                            ​ 17.5%          ​ 30%***        ​ Over 
LGBTQ                                           ​ 9.3%(U.S.)  ​ 5%****        ​ (under/not measured) 
 
 *Represents respondents reporting a household income under $35,000 
** Represents respondents reporting 1 or more child in their home 
***Represents family containing a Senior, not necessarily the Senior being respondent 



12 

**** The Board did not poll for LGBTQ status; however 5 percent of respondents came from a 
household that contained an individual who identified as non-binary, agender, or “prefer not to 
answer”. The answer for LGBTQ residents would most likely have been much higher. 

Several questions asked about their challenges to health and well-being, coverage for services, 
and obstacles to services: 

14. “In the last five years have you or anyone in your residence ever experienced any of the 
following?” Check all that apply. 
69% ​ Anxiety 
56% ​ Depression 
18% ​ A traumatic experience or a PTSD diagnosis 
14% ​ Financial insecurity 
12% ​ Suicidal thoughts or behaviors       ​  
8%   ​ Drug/alcohol abuse, overdose or dependency 
6%   ​ Other mental illness/concern not listed 
5.7%​ Targeted harassment due to having a minority 
        ​ Status(ie race, sexuality, religion, disability 
        ​ Gender, etc.)   
5.1%​ Abuse from a loved one (can include physical, 
        ​ Emotional, verbal or sexual abuse)            ​  
5.1%​ Food insecurity (uncertainty about how/when       ​  
        ​ You might have your next meal due to 
        ​ Lack of funds)                                             ​  
5.1%​ Bullying 
1.3%​ Homelessness 
  
15. If you were to seek mental health services, how would you pay for them? 
56% ​ Insurance                ​  
32% ​ Medicare/Medicaid 
9%   ​ Cash 
3%   ​ Other   (free/I don’t know) 
 
 16. Have you ever avoided seeking mental health care for any of the following reasons? 
Check all that apply. 
18% ​ Insurance coverage not accepted 
16.5%  Insurance coverage does not cover mental health 
14% ​ Self-pay and could not afford 
14% ​ Unable to find locally 
13% ​ Appointment times interfered with work/home responsibilities 
11% ​ Waiting list was too long 
6%   ​ I do not know how to find 
4%   ​ I do not trust MH professionals 
2.5%​ I did not have transportation 



13 

Other: ​I anticipated it would take too long to find; I wasn’t sure I was ready; embarrassment; it 
was hard to find a provider I liked; it was hard to find a good one with no waiting list. 

 Several questions asked respondents for their opinions: 
17. “I believe Forest Park is a safe and healthy place to live.” 
Total answered      ​ Agree/Strongly Agree        ​ Disagree/Strongly Disagree  Neutral 
151                                      ​ 80%                                     ​ 6%   ​                     ​ 15% 
  
18: “I believe Forest Park is an inclusive and welcoming place for me and/or the people I live 
with.” 
Total answered      ​ Agree/Strongly Agree        ​ Disagree/Strongly Disagree  Neutral 
151                                      ​ 83%                                     ​ 5%   ​                     ​ 11% 
  
19: “If either me or someone I was living with was experiencing a mental health crisis, I 
would know where to go/call to seek support services:” (See below for lower response rate) 
Total answered      ​ Agree/Strongly Agree        ​ Disagree/Strongly Disagree  Neutral       ​  
59                                        ​ 21%                         ​         ​ 9%   ​         ​         ​ 7% 

 In addition, we were interested in the open questions: 

22. “What could the Village do better?” 

Slightly more than half the respondents answered. There were five main themes: 

●​ Safety: specifically public transit on the Blue and Green lines 
●​ Raising awareness of resources, making them centralized and more available, in a 

user-friendly manner 
●​ Hiring a full-time social worker to support the Village 
●​ More resources that accept Medicare and Medicaid 
●​ More support for parents, seniors, people with disabilities, teens, children, LGBTQ+, 

grandparents raising children, and people in grief 
 
 23. “What is the Village doing well?” 
 
Again, approximately half of respondents answered. The main themes were: 

●​ Appreciation for community events, services and departments such as Parks and Rec, 
Seniors, Madison Street revitalization, lead pipe replacement, DEI initiatives, music 
events, food pantry and the Village newsletter 

●​ The library itself was acknowledged by 14 percent of respondents 
●​ Approximately 42 percent of respondents replied “I don’t know,” or “nothing,”which 

does not include the half of survey-takers who did not respond at all 
●​ A number of respondents were pleased to learn about the Board and the existence of this 

survey 

 
 



14 

5.  Discussion 
 
This being the first survey and first big/public action as a Board, there is an understanding that 
the Board is not yet a trusted body. No doubt the survey response rate was  affected by the 
unknown of this entity. By offering the survey annually or bi-annually, and becoming more 
active as a Board, residents, staff and business owners will gradually become more aware of and 
comfortable with the survey, and participation should increase yearly. 

  
The timing of the survey launch was unfortunate, being January-March 2025. A new U.S. 
president was inaugurated and this caused social upheaval and stress. There was a general 
climate of distrust of government as perceived threats were announced daily. 

  
The Board received some feedback that the survey felt too intrusive and was therefore unsafe to 
answer, specifically from two women of color (Latina.) 
 
The Board offered the survey only in English, whereas in future it should offer a Spanish 
version. In addition, the Board itself has low diversity (four White women and one Black 
woman); no males and no Latino representation. The Board could have used other Village staff 
or volunteers to expand our participation. 

  
There were several groups of residents that were over/under-represented, and the Board would 
need both different and more outreach to these groups in the future. With a staff of five, time and 
energy was limited, and the Board could consider volunteers in the future. It was proposed that 
the Board could reach out to Church organizations to help with survey dissemination, but there 
simply was not enough time or energy resources to do so.  

  
The resources of the Village staff and buildings themselves were not maximized. Survey flyers 
placed in the Village Hall were twice removed, and the Board was not sure that key staff was 
informed the process was taking place. The Board also saw adverts for a different Forest Park 
survey at the same time, but were not sure who sponsored it. So, the Board can hardly blame the 
public for being confused about the nature of this survey. In the future, the Board would need to 
explore other ways to reach all Village employees; such as if there is a group email or newsletter. 
Perhaps enrolling the Mayor and their staff backing our efforts in a more direct way would 
garner more public and employee support. 

  
Two questions were mistakenly deleted from the online survey, and one was later re- added; 
unfortunately this was Question 19, one of the main queries of the survey. Therefore there are  
only 59 of 158 responses (or 37 percent response rate) for question 19. 

  
6. Recommendations to improve study 
 

In future iterations of the survey, the Board will have a third party proofread that and the online 
version for what might have been missed. The Board could have someone with an 
academic/statistics speciality help design the survey and its results for easier, faster, better 
analysis. 

  



15 

Improvements could be made in all facets of the survey, from design, to launching, to marketing 
and distribution, collection and analysis. It should be noted that the Board operated with little/no 
budget, with the Village supplying printing and copying. 

  
The more events the Board members participate in, the more the public gains trust in and 
awareness of this entity, has a face to put with the names, and is more likely to participate. 

   
  

III. Recommendations to improve mental health in the Village of Forest Park 
 
The following section details five core recommendations that the Board is making to the Village 
as a result of round table discussions, the resident survey, and the collective expertise and 
knowledge of the Board members. These recommendations are guidance for areas and resources 
the Village can invest in in order to support the mental health and wellness of its residents, which 
are in alignment with the mission of this Board (see attached). 
 

Recommendation 1: ​The Village should invest in a comprehensive, clear and 
regularly updated directory of resources that can be used by relevant stakeholders. 

 
Supporting insights 
 
One of the strongest insights gained from both the survey and the roundtable discussions is that 
many residents of Forest Park are not aware of the mental health resources available to them. If 
they do have awareness, they are not always sure of how to access or use these resources.  
 
For example, slightly over 40 percent of survey respondents said they either disagreed or 
strongly disagreed with the statement, “If either me or someone I was living with was 
experiencing a mental health crisis, I would know where to call/seek support services.” 
Approximately 5 percent of respondents stated they were “neutral” in response to that statement.  
 
During the roundtable discussions, stakeholders from Forest Park’s first responders teams 
expressed similar concerns. Common themes discussed among stakeholders included:  
 

1)​ A desire for better cross communication to address citizen mental health issues 
encountered in the public. 

2)​ The need for a singular, up-to-date resource that identifies appropriate mental health 
services for citizens in need. 

 
For the average American, there are a slew of obstacles in the way of accessing relevant and/or 
affordable mental health care. This is true of Forest Park residents, as well. Survey respondents 
cited inadequate insurance coverage, the inability to self-pay, difficulty finding local providers, 
and lack of knowledge about how to access care among the top reasons they have avoided 
seeking mental health services.  
 
Furthermore, 32 percent of respondents use Medicare or Medicaid to pay for mental health 
services. While there is not a definitive statistic that states the number of mental health providers 



16 

in Illinois that accept federally-funded healthcare plans, there are numerous reports that speak to 
the declining acceptance rate of these plans by mental health providers across the state.  
 
Forest Park’s first responders are often the ones who are interfacing with people who would most 
benefit from affordable or bridge mental health services (i.e. assigned to a case worker). Their 
ability to quickly tap into the right resources is greatly consequential to the people they serve.  
 
What should be done?  
 
In short: It is very difficult to access affordable or relevant mental health services. These services 
do exist, but it is hard for the average citizen to navigate the knotty network that is mental health 
care. Many people either do not know which type of service or provider is right for their needs. 
And, if they do find a right fit, they may find themselves on a lengthy waitlist. For these reasons, 
it is critical that Forest Park residents have access to an easy-to-use, comprehensive tool that can 
help them understand and utilize the mental health resources available to them.  
 
How to implement this recommendation 
 
The Board recommends that the Village invest in a central, simple resource hub that helps Forest 
Park residents and first responders understand the mental health services that are available. 
Fortunately, there are a myriad of local mental health resource hubs that already exist. Some 
examples include: the Community Mental Health Board (CMHB) of Oak Park’s resource guide 
(available online and in print), the Proviso Township’s Mental Health Commission's website, and 
the resource hub on the Forest Park Library’s website.  
 
Given the financial limitations that the Village is currently facing, there needs to be a strategic 
and carefully-considered buildout of Forest Park’s own resource hub. The BOH recommends the 
following steps to achieve this:  
 
Implementing short-term solutions 
 

●​ The Village can get permission from the Oak Park CMHB to print and digitally distribute 
its existing resource guide. This printed guide can be made available across Village 
touchpoints such as the library, community center, Village Hall, ROOS, and other local 
businesses. It can also exist digitally on relevant websites such as the library and Village 
sites.  

●​ Forest Park’s first responders can be outfitted with these guides to use in the field in case 
the assigned social worker is not available.  

 
Implementing long-term solutions 
 
The Village would be best served with a centralized, online hub that both citizens and first 
responders can access to find best-fit mental health resources. This can be accomplished in one 
of two ways, both which have various cost implications.  
 



17 

●​ Lower cost option: Continue to add resources to existing resource hubs on either the 
Village or Library websites. The Board recommends updating one of these sites so it can 
be marketed to residents as a comprehensive, one-stop shop location. Resources should 
be added and categorized strategically to meet various needs that residents or first 
responders may search for.  

●​ Higher cost option: Forest Park could create a dynamic and comprehensive online 
research hub that allows users to search for services by need. It could expand upon 
existing resource hubs by allowing local private providers to add their information to the 
hub, for a small fee. Building a separate website with these capabilities could cost 
anywhere from $5,000-10,000. It may be possible to acquire the funds for this project via 
grants or a public funding campaign.  

 
It is recommended that the BOH oversee the implementation of both sets of solutions, with 
approval from the Village at each step of the process.  

Recommendation 2:  The Village should invest in personnel to facilitate mental 
health resourcing for people in need. 

Supporting insights 

Each participant during the round table discussions expressed the need for a dedicated, centrally 
located staff person(s) that could perform a variety of mental health and social service-related 
tasks. Although the village does contract with Ascension-ProCare for a part time Police Crisis 
Counselor, the feedback was that this role, while helpful, is not available full time and is more 
often used for after-the-fact follow-up as opposed to in-person assistance in real time.    

The Library and Community Center often encounter people in need of services and attention that 
is beyond their remit. Both have done an excellent job in adapting to the needs of the people that 
come to their locations. No staff member at either location has credentials or certifications in 
mental health or substance abuse (which could include LCSW, LCPC, QMHP, CMHW, CADC 
and others). The staff at the Community Center often do case management tasks such as assisting 
with Medicaid and food stamp applications, intervening with family and in the homes of elderly 
in need, and making referrals for mental health and substance use assistance. The Library often 
intervenes with mental health emergencies and the myriad of needs of unhoused people who 
utilize the space. 

The addition of a mental health professional available to the community center and the library 
could help to ensure the most appropriate resources are being used for referrals, follow-up is 
built in whenever possible and to support the staff  as they navigate challenging work. 

The first responders expressed frustration with the sometimes-limited resources they have with 
mental health emergencies. Ideally, they believe a center for assessment/respite/referral and 
ongoing case management would be better than the hospital/discharge/re-admission cycle that is 



18 

often experienced.* A NAMI program called the “Living Room” does exist for this purpose. 
However, it is not always possible for a first responder to transport someone to another 
community for this service. The closest NAMI Living Room programs are in Summit and 
LaGrange; they are often best used when a family member or friend brings a client in before a 
situation escalates to a call to 911.   

 * Update- a NAMI Living Room Pilot program will begin in Oak Park in early 2026.  

What should be done? 

The Board recommends that the Village invest in a full time Licensed Clinical Social Worker that 
is employed by the Village. This position would work with persons referred by Village 
Departments including the Library, Community Center, Village Hall, the Police and Fire 
Departments and Park District. They would also be available for the staff of Village Departments 
to provide education and support as requested. This position would be the point person to 
maintain the Central Information Hub (described in recommendation 1).  They would provide 
some direct individual services and primarily make referrals and conduct ongoing follow-up and 
case management of persons that have been referred to mental health or other services.   

Examples of duties would include: 

●​ Ongoing follow-up and case management with individuals and families after a crisis 
●​ Take direct referrals from village departments of people in need, but not necessarily in a 

crisis  
●​ Be available to the library to assist or facilitate needed intervention 
●​ Be available to the Community Center for mental health/substance use or other patron 

concerns 
●​ Follow-up with residents who have been the victim of crimes/domestic violence to 

provide support and encourage referrals for continued counseling and support.    
●​ Be a resource to support and educate staff at the library, community center, police and 

fire departments as to best practices in mental health, updates on the central hub of 
resources, etc. 

●​ Create connections and partnerships with community resources in the township and 
surrounding towns. Maintain the centralized database of resources as described in 
recommendation 1.   

●​  As a clinically licensed social worker, this person could provide an opportunity for one 
or two graduate level interns per school year/summer session.  This would provide 
additional assistance for the tasks of the position as well as provide local internship 
opportunities for universities such as Dominican, UIC, Loyola (all with Master’s in 
Social work programs). 



19 

●​ Assisting/consulting with police/EMT’s in intervening with individuals experiencing a 
mental health emergency. 

How to implement this recommendation 

Based on the tasks above, the best fit for a position like this would be full time Licensed Clinical 
Social Worker, preferably bilingual, who has specialized training and experience in mental health 
and substance use disorders, crisis intervention and stakeholder and community education. The 
Board recognizes that this is a wish list of expertise, and a candidate might not meet all of the 
wish list criteria. This role would need to be paid at a rate commensurate to this level of 
education and experience. 

This role could be in addition to the current part time police crisis counselor role. The positions 
could co-exist if there were clear descriptions of what each would do and  how best each would 
provide a service to the community.   

This could be a day shift or a mixed shift position. One full-time person could clearly not be 
available to respond to all emergencies or needs in a normal eight hour shift. 

This position would provide a consistent staff person who could follow up with people referred 
by the emergency responders after a crisis.     

Long term solutions 

The “gold standard” for mental health emergencies would be to create a space with 24/7 
availability that would serve Forest Park and Proviso Township, and include other nearby towns 
such as Oak Park, River Forest and Berwyn. A center like this exists at the DuPage County 
Crisis Recovery Center in Wheaton, which serves all of DuPage County. (www.dupagecrc.org) 

Having a NAMI Living Room located in Forest Park or in the tri-village area would be a big help 
to families and people experiencing mental health distress/emergencies as a place to voluntarily 
receive professional assistance without having to call for emergency responders as a first 
response. *update: a plan for a NAMI Living Room Pilot program to be located in Oak Park is in 
place for 2026, per the Community Mental Health Board of Oak Park)     

Recommendation 3: The Village should form and strengthen strategic partnerships 
with neighboring communities to improve access to and awareness of relevant 
resources 

Supporting insights 



20 

The Board itself, as well as many residents and community providers, do not feel confident in 
Forest Park’s connection to neighboring Villages. The Board discovered a sort of “silo effect” 
wherein providers are not well-connected to each other or smoothly connected to resources in 
other Villages.  

What should be done? 

The Board is one obvious arm of the Village that can develop these partnerships. 

How to implement this recommendation 

The Board should attend relevant meetings of neighboring Villages, namely: Oak Park/River 
Forest, Maywood, Broadview, and Berwyn. Oak Park has both a Board of Health and a 
Community Mental Health Board which are open to the public. Recently the Village of Forest 
Park partnered with Oak Park, Riveredge Hospital and the American Foundation for Suicide 
Prevention to cosponsor the Suicide Prevention Summit 2025, which was a very productive way 
to increase providers’ awareness of each other and form connections. 

The Board  should remain updated on Cook County, Proviso Township and State of Illinois 
health initiatives as they relate to Forest Park, one avenue being the Proviso Township Mental 
Health Commission. The more relationships that are formed, the more the Village and its 
residents will be able to gain invitations to forums, events and sources where information is 
shared. This information can be shared more widely to the public for their gain. 

Recommendation 4: The Board of Health should regularly solicit feedback from residents 
on the state of health/mental health in Forest Park 

Supporting insights 

To the Board’s knowledge, residents have never been surveyed ever before, in general or in 
relation to these issues. The Board is not aware of community providers being interviewed as 
well, unless this occurred in response to emergency issues.  

What should be done? 

The Board can and should repeat the community survey, whether this is annually or bi-anually. It 
can and should have continued dialogue with community providers as well. The Board could 
also invite individual members of the community to dialogue with its members, or provide town 
hall type events for larger numbers of residents. These events could happen one or two times a 
year. The community should have means to offer input to the Board and ultimately, the Mayor 
and Commissioners.  

How to implement this recommendation 



21 

The Board repeats the survey, with improvements in order to get more and better participation 
and information. Although this is a  time-consuming process, it is relatively inexpensive, has the 
possibility of yielding valuable information, as well as help residents feel heard and cared for by 
their government, which is helpful for health and mental health. 

Without too much effort, the Board could provide focus groups, more provider round tables and 
interactions with the public. 

Recommendation 5: The Village should better help the Helpers (i.e. provide more 
training and support services to front-line civic employees regarding their own 
mental health)  

Supporting insights 
 
During the roundtable discussions, the Board learned that front-line workers face unique 
challenges. They bear the burdens and weight of balancing their own personal struggles with the 
demands of jobs in fast paced and high-pressure environments. Frontline workers also face 
significant barriers to accessing mental health support. Stigma is a significant barrier, and many 
feel that seeking mental health support could negatively affect their career and lead to decreased 
confidence from peers and supervisors.  
 
That being said, the Board was heartened to learn that in several of the front line worker 
organizations that serve Forest Park, there are significant attempts being made to positively shift 
the conversation around mental health. Representatives from these organizations reported that 
there are department leadership efforts being made to normalize seeking mental health services. 
There are also Employee Assistance Plans built into healthcare plans offered to these frontline 
workers. Still, there is more the Village can do to help its helpers.  
 
 
What should be done?  
 
The Board recommends taking a 360 approach to helping the Village’s helpers – meaning 
supporting the health of first responders, while also enabling them to respond better to the mental 
health of those they serve. Many of the aforementioned recommendations aim to help first 
responders feel more confident in responding to mental health crises in the field. Directly 
supporting the mental health of these workers will also help them feel more mentally and 
emotionally prepared to engage in this work. 
 
 
 
 



22 

How to implement this recommendation 
Supporting the mental health of the Village’s frontline workers involves a two-pronged approach: 
adapting culture, and offering supportive products.  
 
Adapting culture 
It is important for leadership in these departments to normalize conversations regarding mental 
health through internal communication channels. This can begin at onboarding, where employees 
are encouraged to use the EAP. Seasoned employees should also be routinely prompted to 
consider using the EAP.  
 
Supportive products 
Here, products refer to training, policies, and offerings that support mental health. Examples the 
Board would recommend include:  
 

●​ Training workers in Mental Health First Aid (MHFA), with additional MHFA training 
that are targeted for First Aid for First Responders, as well as MHFA for Public Safety 
Personnel 

●​ Creating and implementing policies that promote work-life balance, such as employee 
wellness days 

●​ Forming an anonymous support line for workers who are struggling with mental health 
and would like to access services in a private way 

Attachments: 

1.     The 2025 survey 

2.     The flyer 

3.     The ‘postcard’  



23 

Attachment 1: The 2025 Survey 
Learning About Mental Health in Forest Park 

The following is a survey to learn more about the general status of mental health and wellness 
in our community. Mental health is described as a person’s overall emotional and psychological 
well-being. There are many factors that can impact our mental health, so this survey asks a 
broad range of questions that deal with health, finances, safety, and more.  

There are 25 questions on this survey. All of your answers are confidential and cannot be traced 
back to you unless you choose to supply your contact information on question 23. If at any point 
you do not feel comfortable answering a question, you can skip the question (if it is not a 
required field) or discontinue the survey.  

This survey will take anywhere from 10-15 minutes to complete. You must be 18 or older to 
complete this survey. Please limit responses to one (1) per household. 

* Indicates required question 

Who will see the results of this survey? 

This is a confidential survey conducted by the Board of Health (BOH) in Forest Park. The board 
consists of five members, all of which have a background or licensure in mental health or public 
health. Because of their experience, the board members have been trained in how to keep 
health-related information confidential.  

The only people who will have access to individual survey answers will be the BOH members, 
who will then summarize the findings and general results of the collective responses to make 
recommendations about ways the Village can better support the mental health of its residents. 

1.​ Do you currently live in Forest Park, IL?* 
Yes 
No 

 
2. Please choose the option that best describes your residency in Forest Park:* 

Permanent resident (I’m living here for an indefinite period of time) 
Short-term resident (I’m living here for a limited period of time, at least 6 months or more) 
Visitor (I’m just passing through, staying here less than 6 months) 

 
3. Are you 18 years or older? * 

Yes 
No 

 



24 

4. How many people live in your household, including you? 
1-2 
3-5 
5+ 

 
5. How long have you lived in Forest Park? 

0-5 years 
6-10 years 

11-20 years 
More than 20 years 

 
6. What are the age ranges of you and/or the people living in your residence. Check all 
that apply.  

0-3 years 
4-12 years 
13-18 years 

19-29 years 
30-45 years 
46-65 years 
66+ 

 
7. Which best describes the gender identity/identities of you and/or the people who live 
in your residence? Check all that apply.  

Female 
Male 
Non-binary 
Transgender female 

Transgender male 
Two-spirited 
Agendered 
Other 
Prefer not to disclose 

 
8. Which best describes the racial makeup of you and/or the members of your 
residence? Check all that apply. 

Black or African American 
White (non-Hispanic) 
Latino/Latina/Latine 
Asian/Pacific Islander 
Middle Eastern/North African 

Native American 
Biracial 
Other 
Prefer not to disclose 

 
 
 
9.What are the primary languages spoken by you or members of your residence?  
Check all that apply.  

English 
Spanish 
Polish 
Chinese (Cantonese, Mandarin, other) 

Hindi 
Arabic 
Urdu 
Ukrainian 
Other 

 
10.What is your total annual household income level? 

Less than $35,000 
$36,000-60,000 
$61,000-80,000 

$81,000-150,000 
$151,000-200,000 
Over $200,000 
Prefer not to disclose 

 
 



25 

11.Do you or and/or anyone in your residence identify as disabled? (Disability can be 
physical or cognitive.) 

Yes 
No 
Prefer not to disclose 

 
12.Please check all of the options that best describe your personal healthcare 
coverage. If "other", please specify:  

Uninsured 
Insured via Medicaid 
Insured via Medicare 
Insured via Medicare + supplemental insurance 
Insured via private or employer-offered provider 
Other: 

 
13.In the last 5 years, have you or anyone in your residence ever participated in the 
following services? Check all that apply.  

Individual counseling/therapy 
Couples or family counseling/therapy 
Support group 
Group therapy 
In-patient hospitalization for mental health treatment or substance use 
Partial hospitalization for mental health treatment or substance use 
Workshop or training program to support mental health or developmental challenges 
Visits with a psychiatrist, doctor, or nurse practitioner for psychiatric medication management 
Transitional or permanent supervised housing program to support persons with mental health 
issues 
Consulted with a spiritual advisor about mental health issues 
Used a crisis help line or visited a crisis center (i.e. NAMI's Living Room) 

 
14.In the last 5 years, have you or anyone in your residence ever experienced any of 
the following? Check all that apply.  

Depression 
Anxiety 
A traumatic experience OR a post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) diagnosis 
Suicidal thoughts or behaviors 
Drug/alcohol abuse, overdose, or dependency 
Abuse from a loved one (can include physical, emotional, verbal, or sexual abuse) 
Food insecurity (i.e. uncertainty about how/when you might have your next meal due to lack of 
funds) 
Financial insecurity (i.e. uncertainty about whether or not you can pay bills in a timely way) 
Homelessness/housing insecurity 
Bullying 
Targeted harassment due to having a minority status (i.e.: race, sexuality, religion, disability, 
gender, etc.) 
Other mental illness/concern not listed 

 



26 

15.If you were to seek mental health services, how would you pay for them? If you 
choose "other", please specify. 

Private insurance 
Medicare or Medicaid 
Cash/direct payment 
Other: 

 
16.Have you ever avoided seeking mental health care for any of the following reasons? 
Check all that apply. If you choose "other", please specify. 

The insurance coverage I have does not cover mental health services. 
The insurance coverage I have was not accepted at the service provider I wanted/needed to 
see. 
I have to self-pay for mental health services and I couldn’t afford it. 
I was unable to find the services I wanted/needed locally. 
I do not know how to find the mental health resources I need. 
The waiting list for my selected provider was too long. 
I did not have transportation. 
I do not trust mental health professionals to give me proper care. 
I could not find services in my preferred language. 
I had difficulties finding appointments during times that wouldn't interfere with work/home 
responsibilities. 
Other: 

For the following three statements, please rate your level of agreement. 
 
17.I believe Forest Park is a safe and healthy place to live. 

Strongly disagree 
Disagree 
Neutral 
Agree 
Strongly agree 

 
18.I believe Forest Park is an inclusive and welcoming place for me and/or the people I 
live with. 

Strongly disagree 
Disagree 
Neutral 
Agree 
Strongly agree 

 
19.If either me or someone I was living with was experiencing a mental health crisis, I 
would know where to call/seek support services. 

Strongly disagree 
Disagree 
Neutral 
Agree 
Strongly agree 

 



27 

21.When you consider the overall current state of the mental health of those living in 
your residence in comparison to five years ago, how would you describe it?  

Significantly worse 
Worse 
About the same 
Better 
Significantly better 

 
22.What, if anything, do you think the Village could do to better support the mental 
health and wellness of Forest Park residents? 
23.What, if anything, do you think the Village is doing well to support the mental health 
and wellness of Forest Park residents? 
 
24.If the Board of Health wanted to contact you to learn more about your experiences, 
would you be open to having a confidential discussion with them?* 

Yes 
No 

If you answered YES to the above question, please share your email below: 
 
25.If you would like to be entered into the raffle for free gift cards to local stores and 
restaurants, please enter your email below: 
 
Thank you for your time and effort in completing this survey. 
If you have any additional questions about this survey, please email 
forestparkboardofhealth@gmail.com. 

 



28 

Attachment 2 : The 2025 Survey Flyer 



29 

Attachment 3: The 2025 Survey Postcard 

How are you feeling, 

Forest Park? 

Your answer could help shape mental health services in our village! 

  

 (Insert QR code 
here) 

​
 Survey respondents will be entered into a random drawing for gift cards to local 
merchants. Drawing on March 31, 2025. 

Take the survey: 

●​ QR code above 
●​  Link: https://bit.ly/3Vnd05u 
●​ Paper survey, return to Village Hall, Park District, Library or 

Community Center. 

From the Forest Park Board of Health 

  

 



1354759.1 

ORDINANCE NO. O-_________-26 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING  
A LOAN FROM FOREST PARK NATIONAL BANK  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8-1-3.1 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-1-

3.1), the Village of Forest Park (the “Village”) is authorized to borrow money from a bank or 

other financial institution, provided such money shall be repaid within ten (10) years from the 

time the money is borrowed; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find that, it is necessary, essential 

and in the best interests of the residents of the Village that the Village obtain a loan from Forest 

Park National Bank to finance all or a portion of the purchase of one (1) Pierce Enforcer Pierce 

Ultimate Configuration (PUC) 100’ Ascendant Tower Ladder Truck, with options, as provided 

for herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The preambles set forth above are full, true and correct and are hereby 

incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 Section 2. The corporate authorities of the Village approve and authorize a line of 

credit thereafter convertible to a permanent loan from Forest Park National Bank for a term not 

to exceed ten (10) years, from the time the money is borrowed, and in an amount not to exceed 

the lesser of One Million Five Hundred Thousand and 00/100ths Dollars ($1,500,000.00) or an 

amount, when aggregated with the existing indebtedness of the Village, that does not exceed the 

debt limitation provided in Section 8-5-1 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-5-1), and a 

taxable interest rate not to exceed the maximum rate permitted by law. 



1354759.1 
 

 Section 3. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute a promissory note 

or other similar debt instrument, but not a bond, to evidence the indebtedness incurred by the 

borrowing, and such other officers of the Village are authorized and directed to take such other 

actions and execute such documents as are necessary to establish the loan and carry out the 

purpose and intent of this Ordinance. 

 Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon and after its passage 

and approval in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 9th day 

of February, 2026. 

AYES:         
 
NAYS:         
 
ABSENT:         
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
      Rory E. Hoskins 
ATTEST: 
 

 
___________________________   
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 



1 

 Office of the 
Fire Chief 

Memo  
To: Forest Park Village Council 

From: Chief Lindsey Hankus 

Date: 1/12/2026 

Re: Approval of Purchase Agreement – Replacement of Truck 403 

I am requesting Village Council approval to enter into a purchase agreement to replace 
Truck 403 by securing a September 2026 Dealer Allocated Stock production slot with 
Pierce. 

Approval at this time is critical. Dealer Allocated Stock slots are limited and assigned well 
in advance. If this slot is not secured now, the Village risks losing the opportunity and 
therefore extending delivery. Locking in this allocation allows the Fire Department to take 
delivery of the replacement truck in approximately September 2027. 

Truck 403 was removed from service earlier this year after being determined to be beyond 
reasonable and cost-effective repair. As a result, the Village currently has no frontline 
truck company. This creates a significant operational gap in ladder operations, elevated 
rescues, ventilation, and firefighter safety. 

The impact of this loss is not theoretical. At a recent structure fire, there was a delay in the 
arrival of a mutual aid truck company. During that incident, firefighters were required to 
rescue a Village resident from a third-story window using a ground ladder that was too 
short and had to be operated at an unsafe angle. While the rescue was successful, the 
situation clearly demonstrated the risks of not having an in-service truck. 

I am including a letter from our Pierce representative explaining the Dealer Allocated 
Stock program and the ordering process. This allocation represents our best opportunity to 
replace Truck 403 within a reasonable and predictable timeframe. 

For these reasons, I am respectfully requesting Village Council approval of the purchase 
agreement at this time. 

Thank you, 
Chief Hankus 



1354676.1

ORDINANCE NO. O-_________-26 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING THE BIDDING PROCESS AND  
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE PIERCE ENFORCER  

ULTIMATE CONFIGURATION (PUC) 100′ ASCENDANT TOWER 
LADDER TRUCK BY THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (the “Village”), a body politic and corporate, duly 

organized and existing as a municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, is authorized by the laws 

of the State of Illinois to purchase and acquire personal property for the benefit of the Village and 

its inhabitants and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Houston Galveston Area Council administers a cooperative purchasing 

program to assist local governments in purchasing equipment to be used for governmental 

purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Houston Galveston Area Council is authorized by the Texas Interlocal 

Cooperation Act (Texas Government Code, Title 7, Chapter 791) to contract or agree with another 

local government to perform governmental functions and services, and the Village of Forest Park 

is authorized by Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution, Section 3 of the 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/3) and the Governmental Joint Purchasing Act 

(30 ILCS 525/1, et seq.) to enter into intergovernmental agreements to perform any governmental 

service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is 

authorized by law to perform, provided that such contract shall be authorized by the governing 

body of each party to the contract; and  

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village deem it for the benefit of the Village 

and for the efficient and effective administration thereof that the Village purchase and acquire one 

(1) Pierce Enforcer Pierce Ultimate Configuration (PUC) 100′ Ascendant Tower Ladder Truck



1354676.1 

(“Ladder Truck”) for the Fire Department constituting personal property necessary for the Village 

to perform essential governmental functions; and 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of four-fifths (4/5ths) of the corporate authorities of the Village, 

it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the Village waive newspaper advertisement 

for bids, waive the procedure prescribed for the submission of competitive bids, solicit proposals 

in the open market and purchase through the Houston Galveston Area Council the Ladder Truck 

for the Fire Department from MacQueen Equipment, LLC, doing business as MacQueen 

Emergency (“MacQueen”), to be funded partially through a loan established for such purpose at 

Forest Park National Bank and Trust Co. (“FP Bank”); and 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of four-fifths (4/5ths) of the corporate authorities of the Village, 

it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest that the Village enter into a Purchase Agreement 

with MacQueen for the purchase and acquisition of the Ladder Truck for the Fire Department to 

be therein described on the terms and conditions therein provided. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Village Council of the Village 

of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1: The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Ordinance are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2: It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 

interest that the Village waive newspaper advertisement for bids, waive the procedure prescribed 

for the submission of competitive bids and solicit proposals in the open market, negotiate a 

satisfactory agreement for the purchase of the Ladder Truck from MacQueen through the Houston 

Galveston Area Council cooperative purchasing program, funded partially through a loan with FP 

Bank. 



1354676.1  

Section 3: It is hereby determined that the Village, after due review, has received a 

satisfactory proposal from MacQueen and has negotiated a satisfactory Purchase Agreement with 

MacQueen for the Ladder Truck. 

Section 4: It is hereby determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public 

interest that the Village shall issue and that the Village Administrator shall be and is hereby 

authorized and directed to execute a Purchase Agreement with MacQueen for the Ladder Truck, a 

copy of which Purchase Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Purchase Agreement”), with 

such insertions, omissions and changes to each as shall be approved by the Village Administrator, 

the execution of such documents being conclusive evidence of such approval; and the Village 

Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Deputy Village Clerk is hereby 

authorized and directed to attest, countersign and deliver such documents to the respective parties 

thereto, as may be necessary and proper to carry out, give effect to and consummate the 

transactions contemplated herein. 

Section 5: The officers and employees of the Village shall take all action necessary or 

reasonably required by the parties to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions 

contemplated hereby and to take all action necessary in conformity therewith, including, without 

limitation, the execution and delivery of any closing and other documents required to be delivered 

in connection with the Purchase Agreement. 

Section 6: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any 

reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, 

paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 



1354676.1  

Section 7: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage by four-

fifths (4/5ths) of all the trustees holding office, approval and publication in pamphlet form as 

provided by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 9th day 

of February, 2026. 

 
AYES:         
 
NAYS:         
 
ABSENT:         
 
        APPROVED: 
 
 

______________________________ 
        Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 

 
 



1354676.1  

EXHIBIT A 
 



1354676.1  



1354676.1  



 

1354676.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   



 

10264671.1   

 
 



1354764.1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R- ________-26 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE  
OF FOREST PARK AND THE COUNTY OF COOK, ACTING  

THROUGH ITS BUREAU OF ASSET MANAGEMENT, FOR THE DESIGN, 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, OPERATION AND 

MAINTENANCE OF TWO (2) ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) and the County of Cook, acting 

through its Bureau of Asset Management (“Cook County”), are public agencies within the 

meaning of the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, as specified in 5 ILCS 220/1 et 

seq., and are authorized by said Act and Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the 

State of Illinois to enter into intergovernmental agreements; and 

WHEREAS, Cook County and the Village recognize that electrical vehicles (“EV”) 

ownership is increasing and that there is a need for public EV charging stations to facilitate and 

support alternative fuel sources; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the foregoing, Cook County and the Village on March 

14, 2025 entered into a certain Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”), where Cook 

County would design, construct, and install one (1) EV charging station and the Village will 

then operate, maintain and make the EV charging station available to the public; and 

WHEREAS, Cook County now proposes to design, construct and install a second EV 

charging station, pursuant to the Agreement, which the Village desires to accept (“Amended 

Project”), as provided for by that certain Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement, a copy of which 

is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and made a part hereof (“Amendment No. 1”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this Resolution are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. That certain Amendment No. 1 for the Amended Project is hereby 

approved. 

 Section 3. The Village authorizes acceptance of, and further agrees to the obligation 

to operate and maintain the Amended Project, pursuant to Amendment No. 1. 



1354764.1 

 Section 4. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, and the Deputy Village 

Clerk is hereby authorized to attest Amendment No. 1, with such changes therein as may be 

approved by the officials executing the same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive 

evidence of approval of such changes. 

 Section 5. The officers and employees of the Village shall take all action necessary 

or reasonably required by the parties to carry out, give effect to and consummate the 

transactions contemplated hereby under Amendment No. 1 and to take all action necessary in 

conformity therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any 

documents required to be delivered in connection with Amendment No. 1 for the Amended 

Project. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage in the manner provided by law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 9th 

day of February, 2026. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 9th day of February, 2026. 
 
 
     
            
      _______________________________________ 
      Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
And published in pamphlet form 
This ______ day of February, 2026. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 
 



1354764.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN COOK COUNTY AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 
 
 



1354764.1 

 



1354764.1 

 



1354711-1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-26 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF 
PAY REQUEST #11 FOR THE AMI WATER METERS 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT TO VEREGY CENTRAL, LLC 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois ("Village"), awarded the 

contract for the AMI Water Meters Replacement Project ("Project") to Veregy Central, LLC 

(“Contractor"); and 

 WHEREAS, Contractor has submitted its Pay Request #11 for completed work to date 

under the Project, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the Pay Request #11 has been reviewed by Village staff, who have 

determined that Contractor is entitled to compensation for certain services performed under the 

Project, pursuant to the Pay Request #11; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village will be obligated to make a payment on Pay Request #11 to 

Contractor in the amount of Two Hundred Twenty-One Thousand Nine Hundred Six and 03/100 

Dollars ($221,906.03); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the Mayor and Council of the Village approve Pay 

Request #11 to Contractor under the contract for the Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Village of 

Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The Council of the Village hereby approves Pay Request #11 to 

Contractor in the amount of Two Hundred Twenty-One Thousand Nine Hundred Six and 03/100 

Dollars ($221,906.03) under the contract for the Project with Contractor. 

 Section 2. The Village Clerk is directed to attest to the Mayor's signature on any and 

all documents, as necessary. 



1354711-1 

 Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

adoption in accordance with law. 

 ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 9th 

day of February, 2026.  

 
 AYES: ___________________________ 
 
 NAYS: ___________________________ 
 
 ABSENT: _________________________  
 

APPROVED by me this 9th day of February, 2026. 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor  
 
 

ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of February, 2026. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk  
  
 
 



1354711-1 

VEREGY CENTRAL, LLC 
AMI WATER METERS REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

PAY REQUEST #11 



1354711-1 



1354711-1 



1354711-1 



1354711-1 



1354711-1 



1354711-1 



1354711-1 

 

 



1 

 Office of the 
Fire Chief 

Memo  
To: Forest Park Village Council 

From: Chief Lindsey Hankus 

Date: 01/22/2026 

Re: Filling Fire Department Vacancy 

Village Council, 

I am requesting approval to fill the firefighter/paramedic vacancy created by the 
separation of Antonio Torres. 

The Fire Department is currently accepting applications to administer a new firefighter 
examination and establish an updated candidate eligibility list. Approval to fill this vacancy 
will allow the department to move forward promptly once the list is finalized. 

 

Thank you, 

Chief Hankus 



1 

 Office of the 
Fire Chief 

Memo  
To: Forest Park Village Council 

From: Chief Lindsey Hankus 

Date: 01/30/2026 

Re: Filling Fire Department Vacancy 

Village Council, 

I am requesting approval to fill the firefighter/paramedic vacancy created by Adrian Bala's 
resignation. 

The Fire Department is currently accepting applications to administer a new firefighter 
examination and establish an updated candidate eligibility list. Approval to fill this vacancy 
will allow the department to move forward promptly once the list is finalized. 

 

Thank you, 

Chief Hankus 



APPLICATION FOR USE OF PUBLIC WAY 
IN THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

(Date) 

INFORMATION: 

Name of Entity  

Street Address: Phone: (      ) 

City, State, Zip Code: 

Name of Owner: Phone: (      ) 

Person to Contact: Phone: (      ) 

Type of Use Requested (i.e., Construction, Location, Size, Street/Parking Lot, etc.): 

Schedule (Give dates and times, including set up and tear down): 

Proposed location (Include sketch of layout with measurements): 

General description of use as well as any special requests: 

Donnie Biggins
1/29/2026

Donnie Biggins
 Robert’s Westside, INC.

Donnie Biggins
7321 Madison Street

Donnie Biggins
708

Donnie Biggins
689-0486

Donnie Biggins
 Forest Park, IL 60130

Donnie Biggins
Donnie Biggins

Donnie Biggins
708

Donnie Biggins
 533-4095

Donnie Biggins
Donnie Biggins

Donnie Biggins
Parking Lot located at the corner 

Donnie Biggins
of Madison & Circle for the 2026 Food Aid Block Party - Food Aid is an annual fundraising concert hosted by Robert’s Westside

Donnie Biggins
 in collaboration with WBEZ Chicago.

Donnie Biggins
Saturday, August 22, 2026 from 10AM - 8PM

Donnie Biggins
Set Up 10AM - 12PM, Breakdown 6:30PM - 8:00PM

Donnie Biggins
Forest Park Municap Lot 6

Donnie Biggins
We will set up a 16 x 16 tent for live music from 12PM - 6PM. 

Donnie Biggins
Robert’s Westside will apply for single day liquor license with the State Of Illinois. We would set up an outdoor bar and food.

Donnie Biggins
Additional items on site - Tables & pop up tents for beneficiaries (Beyond Hunger, Best Of Proviso, Austin Coming Together, A House In Austin, Westchester Food Pantry, Community Fridges 



Use of the Public Way Application      Page 2 

Anticipated needs of Village personnel, equipment and/or property: 

INSURANCE: 

No later than ten (10) days prior to the event, the Applicant shall furnish to the Village, a certificate of insurance 
evidencing commercial general liability insurance with minimum limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
combined single limit per occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000.000.00) general aggregate limits and 
otherwise reasonably satisfactory to the Village.  The insurance policy shall be expressly endorsed to include the 
Village, as additional insured as outlined below.  Such insurance shall be maintained during the term of use. 

Such certificate shall include the following language:  “The Village of Forest Park, its corporate authorities, 
officers, officials, boards, commissions, employees, attorneys, agents and representatives are made additional 
insured with respect to any and all claims which arise out of, or are in any way related to, the operations of 
(entity name) while present in the Village of Forest Park.” 

The Applicant shall also attach proof that the appropriate workers compensation and employer’s liability 
insurance have been provided for the employees of the requesting entity. 

Certificate attached 
(initials) 

INDEMNITY AGREEMENT: 

The Applicant shall sign a Non-Exclusive Permit and Indemnity Agreement with the Village of Forest Park 
holding the Village harmless of any claim that may arise from their use of designated public property, right-of-
way, or equipment in conjunction with the permitted use. 

SURETY BOND REQUIRED 

In addition to the foregoing requirements, the applicant shall, as a part of his application, deposit with the 
village clerk a surety bond in the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) as security for the payment of 
any damage which may result to such public way, public park or public building by reason of the applicant's use 
of the same pursuant to a permit to be issued herein. Any part of said deposit not needed or used to repair, 
replace or restore damage so occasioned to public property by the applicant at the end of the permit period shall 
be returned to the applicant within ten (10) days after the expiration date. 

MISCELLANEOUS: 

Specify any other circumstances, conditions, or anticipated needs not covered in this application: 

Donnie Biggins
We would need the cars to be cleared out by 10AM +

Donnie Biggins
cement barriers to block the entrance to the parking lots from any vehicles. 



Use of the Public Way Application Page 3 

The entity or representative shall sign this application and upon favorable consideration of this application, the 

Village shall issue a permit for the requested activity subject to the aforesaid conditions and any others as may 

be reasonably required. 

CASH DEPOSIT: 

In lieu of the Surety Bond requirement, the applicant, prior to the issuance of any permit hereunder shall deposit 

with the village a cash deposit in the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) to ensure that no damage will be 

done to the adjoining streets, sewers, trees or adjoining properties and that all residual debris, trash and 

materials will be removed following the use.  Such deposit shall be returned to the applicant upon the 

certification by the Director of Public Works or Public Health and Safety that all conditions of the permit have 

been complied with and that no damages occurred as a result of the use of the public way by the applicant. 

FEES AND REMUNERATION: 

The fee for processing and issuing the permit for the use of the public way shall be fifty dollars 

($50.00).  In addition, the cost for the use of police, public safety, public works or other village personnel, the 

use of village equipment and public property shall be as outlined in section 7-2 of the municipal code. 

I have read, understand and agree to abide by the terms and conditions of Title7, Chapter 2, Section entitled 

“Private Use of Public Ways” of the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois. 

Signature 

Print Name 

Title Date 

APPROVED: 

Village Clerk Date 

Donnie Biggins
Donnie Biggins

Donnie Biggins
President

Donnie Biggins
01.29.26



Non-Exclusive Permit and Indemnity Agreement 

This Non-Exclusive Permit and Indemnity Agreement is made and entered into on this 29th day 
of January, 2026 by and between the Village of Forest Park, Illinois, an Illinois municipal 
corporation (herein referred to sometimes as “Village”) and Robert's Westside 
(herein referred to as “Applicant”). 

Applicant desires to enter onto and utilize a certain portion of the Village public property, right 
of way, and/or equipment (hereinafter referred to as “Village Property”), for the limited purpose 
for Food Aid , and the Village is willing to grant Applicant a non-exclusive and temporary 
permit to do so, on the terms and conditions set forth below.  In signing this document, 
Applicant acknowledges that the Village would not allow such a use unless Applicant fully 
recognizes and assumes the existence of risks that exist with operating such a use and abides by 
the regulations and limitations as may be imposed by the Village. 

Village hereby grants Applicant and its invitees, employees, volunteers, representatives and agents 
(collectively, the “Users”), a temporary, non-exclusive permit to enter on the Village Property for 
the limited purpose of utilizing the Village Property for said Purpose, subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 

(1) TERM.  The term of this Permit shall be one day(s), beginning August 22,  2026 at 
10:00 a.m. and ending at 8pm. (the “Permit Term”).

(2) RESTRICTION ON USE.  Applicant and Users shall solely use the Village Property for 
the limited purpose of said Purpose.  The Applicant shall not alter the Village Property in any 
fashion without the written consent of the Village.  The Applicant’s use of the Village Property 
shall not be exclusive and shall not interfere with the Village’s use of or access to the Village 
Property.

Applicant shall not carry on, upon the Village Property, or any part thereof, or permit to be 
carried on, any trade, business or use of an unsafe or unhealthful nature, or which shall constitute a 
nuisance.   Applicant shall not use, or permit to be used, said Village Property, or any part thereof, 
for any illegal, immoral, or adult business (as defined in the Municipal Code of the Village of Forest 
Park) or purpose whatsoever.  Applicant and Users shall comply with the requirements of the 
Village of Forest Park Police and Fire Departments in conducting said Purpose and shall confer 
with said departments to ensure safety and compliance with all Village Ordinances. 

(3) CONDITION; MAINTENANCE; REPAIR.  Applicant accepts the Village Property in its
current condition and Village makes no representations concerning the condition of the Village
Property.  Village has no duty or obligation to maintain or repair the Village Property during the
Permit Term.  Further, Village shall not be liable to Applicant or Users for any damage or injury to
any of them or their property occasioned by the failure of the Village to keep the Village Property
maintained and in repair.  Except as approved by the Village, Applicant and Users shall not attach,
affix or exhibit or permit to be attached, affixed or exhibited to the Village Property any articles of
permanent or semi-permanent character.



211719-1 

(4) ASSUMPTION OF RISK.  Applicant and Users shall use the Village Property at their own
risk and Village shall not be liable for any damage to person or property resulting, directly or
indirectly, from Applicant’s and Users’ use of the Village Property.

(5) INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION.  Applicant shall indemnify and save harmless
Village and its officials, officers, employees, staff, contractors, agents, representatives, consultants,
successors and assigns (collectively, the “Indemnitees”), from and against any and all losses,
damages, claims, actions, liabilities, costs and expenses including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees
and expenses, that the Indemnitees may suffer, incur or sustain arising out of or relating to the
activities of Applicant or the Users of the Village Property for said Purpose or work, or any invitees
thereof, under this Permit, or any acts or omissions of Applicant or its contractors, agents,
employees, tenants, invitees or representatives hereunder; or with respect to or arising out of any use
of the Village Property or the rights herein granted, or the performance or non-performance of
Applicant's obligations hereunder.

Applicant hereby covenants and agrees that Indemnitees shall not be liable for any 
damages arising from personal injury or damage to property which may be sustained in any way 
in, on or about the premises where the said Use or Work is occurring.  Applicant will assume full 
responsibility for any such injuries or damages and hereby fully and forever releases and 
discharges the Indemnitees from any and all claims, demands, damages, rights or actions or 
causes of action present or future whether the same be known, anticipated or unanticipated 
resulting from or arising out of the Use, Purpose or Work on the Village Property.  

While conducting said Purpose or Work, Applicant and Users will adhere to the rules and 
regulations conveyed to Applicant by the Village. In the event that the actions of Applicant 
and/or Users results in injuries to person or property and a claim is made against the Village, its 
officials, officers, employees, staff, contractors, agents, representatives, consultants, successors 
and assigns, Applicant will hold harmless, defend and indemnify the Village and its officials, 
officers, employees, staff, contractors, agents, representatives, consultants, successors and 
assigns against any claim, demand, damage, right of action present or future, whether the same 
be known, anticipated or unanticipated, resulting from the Users.  

No later than one (1) days prior to the Users conducting said Purpose or work, the Applicant 
shall furnish to the Village, a certificate of insurance evidencing commercial general liability 
insurance with minimum limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limit per 
occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000.000.00) general aggregate limits and otherwise 
reasonably satisfactory to the Village.  The insurance policy shall be expressly endorsed to include 
the Village, as additional insured, as outlined in the Application for Use of Public Way.  Such 
insurance shall be maintained during the Permit Term. 

(6) HAZARDOUS WASTE, SUBSTANCES, MATERIALS; EXPLOSIVES.  Applicant shall
not store, house, possess or permit any hazardous waste, hazardous substances, hazardous materials,
or explosives, upon the Village Property, or any part thereof.



211719-1 

(7) ZONING.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed as the Village’s approval or granting
of any zoning or permit requirements, application or petition.

(8) REVOCATION.  This Permit and any rights granted herein may be revoked by the Village
at any time

(9) ENFORCEABILITY.  This Agreement may be enforced either at law or in equity.  If any
term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Permit, or the
application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or circumstances other than those as to
which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term, covenant and
condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

VILLAGE 

Village of Forest Park, an Illinois municipal corporation 

By: _________________________________ 
Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 

Attest: _______________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 

APPLICANT 

Name: ______________________________ 

By:     

Donnie Biggins
Robert’s Westside, INC

Donnie Biggins
Donnie Biggins














	020926 Agenda.pdf
	Village Council Minutes January 26.2026.pdf
	Village of Forest Park
	Meeting minutes
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	1. Police Department – November-December 2025

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	1. Ordinance amending Section 8-1-1, entitled "Building Codes Adoption," of the Municipal Code
	2. Proclamation Honoring the Retirement of Karen Dylewski, Director of the Howard Mohr Community Center
	3. Ordinance approving and authorizing the execution of an Advertiser Sales Contract with Clear Channel Outdoor, LLC for Public Service Announcements on Digital Billboards
	4. Resolution authorizing the Contract Award for the 2025 Lead Service Replacement Project – Stage 3 to Five Star Energy Services, LLC
	5. Resolution approving Pay Request #3 (Final) for the 2025 Green Alley Improvements Project from J. Nardulli Construction Company
	6. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #10 for the AMI Water Meters Replacement Project to Veregy Central, LLC
	7. Resolution approving Pay Request #1 for the 2025 Sidewalk Improvements Project to Robert R. Andreas and Sons, Inc.
	8. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #2 for the 2025 Lead Service Replacement – Stage 2 Project to Five Star Energy Services, Inc.
	9. Resolution authorizing the approval of Pay Request #3 for the 2025 Lead Service Replacement – Stage 2 Project to Five Star Energy Services, Inc.
	10. Approval: Request for Participation in the Vehicle Sticker Registration donation request for CY2026 – Forest Park Food Pantry
	11. Approval: Use of Public Way: Living Word Christian Center, O'Sullivan's Public House and Forest Park Arts Alliance
	12. Approval: Community Center Senior Trip Agreement- Fireside Theater

	ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
	COMMISSIONER REPORTS
	ADJOURNMENT


	2025 FPFD Annual Report
	January 26  Report Forest Park Fire Department
	CC Monthly report jan 2026
	02.09.2026 Bills by Resolution
	02.09.2026 Resolution.pdf
	02.09.2026.pdf

	VA Agenda Memo
	2 FP Board of Health_ 2025 Report Summary; Review of Activities; Full 2025 Report & Attachments
	3 Forest Park Ordinance 2026 Authorizing a Loan from Forest Park National Bank(1354759.1)
	4A Truck Replacement Memo
	4B Ordinance Waiving the Bidding Process and Authorizing the Purchase of One Pierce Enforcer PUC 100' Ascendant Tower Ladder Truck by the Village of Forest Park(1
	APPROVED:
	ATTEST:

	5 Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the intergovernmental agreement with County of Cook, acting through its Bureau of Asset Management, for the design, cons
	6 Forest Park Resolution authorizing approval of pay request #11 for AMI Water Meters Replacement Project to Veregy Central, LLC(1354711.1)
	7A FDVacancy Jan26
	7B Vacancy 2  Jan26
	8A Food Aid Application Use Public Way_2026
	Application for Use of Public Way
	Non- Exclusive Use of Public Way Permit and Indemnity Agreement
	Non-Exclusive Permit and Indemnity Agreement


	8B Food Aid map 2026
	9 Community Center Senior Trip Agreement



